# SURVEILLANCE OF DEVICE ASSOCIATED HOSPITAL ACQUIRED INFECTIONS IN PATIENTS ADMITTED IN MEDICAL INTENSIVE CARE UNIT AND MEDICAL HIGH DEPENDENCY UNIT IN A TERTIARY CARE HOSPITAL IN SOUTH INDIA



A Dissertation submitted in partial fulfillment of

M.D (General Medicine) branch I Examination of the Tamil Nadu

DR. M.G.R. UNIVERSITY, CHENNAI to be held in 2016.

### DECLARATION

I, Dr. Ebenezer Rajadurai . S hereby declare that the dissertation entitled "SURVEILLANCE OF DEVICE ASSOCIATED HOSPITAL ACQUIRED INFECTIONS IN PATIENTS ADMITTED IN MEDICAL INTENSIVE CARE UNIT AND MEDICAL HIGH DEPENDENCY UNIT IN A TERTIARY CARE HOSPITAL IN SOUTH INDIA" is a bonafide original work done by me, towards the M.D. Branch-I (General Medicine) Degree Examination of the Tamil Nadu

Dr.M.G.R. University, Chennai to be conducted in 2016.

Signature:

Dr. Ebenezer Rajadurai. S

P.G.Registrar- Department of Medicine

Christian Medical College

Vellore.

PIN- 632004

## CERTIFICATE

This is to certify that the dissertation entitled "SURVEILLANCE OF DEVICE ASSOCIATED HOSPITAL ACQUIRED INFECTIONS IN PATIENTS ADMITTED IN MEDICAL INTENSIVE CARE UNIT AND MEDICAL HIGH DEPENDENCY UNIT IN A TERTIARY CARE HOSPITAL IN SOUTH INDIA" is the bonafide original work of

Dr. Ebenezer Rajadurai . S, towards the M.D. Branch-I (General Medicine) Degree Examination of the Tamil Nadu Dr. M.G.R. University, Chennai to be conducted in 2016.

Signature:

Dr. Ramya. I (guide)

Professor- Department of Medicine

Christian Medical College

Vellore.

PIN- 632004

## CERTIFICATE

This is to certify that the dissertation entitled "SURVEILLANCE OF DEVICE ASSOCIATED HOSPITAL ACQUIRED INFECTIONS IN PATIENTS ADMITTED IN MEDICAL INTENSIVE CARE UNIT AND MEDICAL HIGH DEPENDENCY UNIT IN A TERTIARY CARE HOSPITAL IN SOUTH INDIA" is the bonafide original work of

Dr . Ebenezer Rajadurai . S , towards the M.D. Branch-I (General Medicine) Degree Examination of the Tamil Nadu Dr. M.G.R. University, Chennai to be conducted in 2016.

Signature:

Dr. Anand Zachariah,

Professor and Head,

Department of Medicine

Christian Medical College

Vellore - 632004

### CERTIFICATE

This is to certify that the dissertation entitled "SURVEILLANCE OF DEVICE ASSOCIATED HOSPITAL ACQUIRED INFECTIONS IN PATIENTS ADMITTED IN MEDICAL INTENSIVE CARE UNIT AND MEDICAL HIGH DEPENDENCY UNIT IN A TERTIARY CARE HOSPITAL IN SOUTH INDIA" is the bonafide original work of

Dr . Ebenezer Rajadurai . S , towards the M.D. Branch-I (General Medicine) Degree Examination of the Tamil Nadu Dr. M.G.R. University, Chennai to be conducted in 2016.

Signature:

Dr. Alfred Job Daniel,

Principal,

Christian Medical College

Vellore – 632004.

| <u>'URN IT IN</u>  |   |   |   |   |
|--|---|---|---|---|
|  |   | 201311457 .general Medicine Ebenezer Rajadur  | ai UserInfo Messages (1 new)  | Student • English • (?) Help  |
| turnitin   |   |   |   |   |
| Class Portfolio Peer Review My Grades  | Discussion Cale   | ndar  |   |   |
| NOW VIEWING: HOME > THE TAMIL NADU DR.M.G.R.ME   | EDICAL UTY 2014-15 EXAMINA  | TIONS   |   |   |
|  |   |   |   |   |
|  |   | Class Homepage  |   |   |
| This is your class homepage. To submit to an assignm<br>are allowed the submit button will read "Resubmit" afte<br>also be able to view the feedback left on your paper by                         | eent click on the "Submit" butt<br>r you make your first submiss<br>clicking the "View" button.<br>Assignment Inb               | Class Homepage<br>on to the right of the assignment name. If the Submit<br>ion to the assignment. To view the paper you have si<br>ox: The Tamil Nadu Dr.M.G.R. Medical Uty 201   | : button is grayed out, no submissions<br>ubmitted, click the "View" button. Once<br>14-15 Examinations   | can be made to the assignment. If res<br>the assignment's post date has pass                  |
| This is your class homepage. To submit to an assignm<br>are allowed the submit button will read "Resubmit" afte<br>also be able to view the feedback left on your paper by                         | eent click on the "Submit" butt<br>r you make your first submiss<br>clicking the "View" button.<br>Assignment Inb<br>Info       | Class Homepage<br>on to the right of the assignment name. If the Submit<br>ion to the assignment. To view the paper you have si<br>ox: The Tamil Nadu Dr.M.G.R.Medical Uty 201<br>Dates   | : button is grayed out, no submissions<br>ubmitted, click the "View" button. Once<br>14-15 Examinations<br>Similarity   | can be made to the assignment. If res<br>the assignment's post date has pass                  |
| This is your class homepage. To submit to an assignm<br>are allowed the submit button will read "Resubmit" afte<br>also be able to view the feedback left on your paper by                         | ent click on the "Submit" butt<br>r you make your first submiss<br>clicking the "View" button.<br>Assignment Inb<br>Info        | Class Homepage<br>on to the right of the assignment name. If the Submit<br>ion to the assignment. To view the paper you have si<br>ox: The Tamil Nadu Dr.M.G.R.Medical Uty 201<br>Dates<br>Start 01-Sep-2014 11:27AM<br>Due 30-Oct-2015 11:59PM<br>Post 30-Oct-2015 12:00AM   | : button is grayed out, no submissions<br>ubmitted, click the "View" button. Once<br>14-15 Examinations<br>Similarity<br>12%  | can be made to the assignment. If res<br>the assignment's post date has pass<br>Resubmit View |
| This is your class homepage. To submit to an assignm<br>are allowed the submit button will read "Resubmit" afte<br>also be able to view the feedback left on your paper by<br>TNMGRMU EXAMINATIONS | nent click on the "Submit" butt<br>r you make your first submiss<br>clicking the "View" button.<br>Assignment Inb<br>Info       | Class Homepage<br>on to the right of the assignment name. If the Submit<br>ion to the assignment. To view the paper you have si<br>ox: The Tamil Nadu Dr.M.G.R.Medical Uty 201<br>Dates<br>Start 01-Sep-2014 11:27AM<br>Due 30-Oct-2015 11:59PM<br>Post 30-Oct-2015 12:00AM   | : button is grayed out, no submissions<br>ubmitted, click the "View" button. Once<br>4-15 Examinations<br>Similarity<br>12%   | can be made to the assignment. If res<br>the assignment's post date has pass<br>Resubmit View |
| This is your class homepage. To submit to an assignm<br>are allowed the submit button will read "Resubmit" afte<br>also be able to view the feedback left on your paper by<br>TNMGRMU EXAMINATIONS | nent click on the "Submit" butt<br>r you make your first submiss<br>clicking the "View" button.<br>Assignment Inb<br>Info       | Class Homepage<br>on to the right of the assignment name. If the Submit<br>ion to the assignment. To view the paper you have si<br>ox: The Tamil Nadu Dr.M.G.R.Medical Uty 201<br>Dates<br>Start 01-Sep-2014 11:27AM<br>Due 30-Oct-2015 11:59PM<br>Post 30-Oct-2015 12:00AM   | : button is grayed out, no submissions<br>ubmitted, click the "View" button. Once<br>I4-15 Examinations<br>Similarity<br>12%  | can be made to the assignment. If res<br>the assignment's post date has pass<br>Resubmit View |
| This is your class homepage. To submit to an assignm<br>are allowed the submit button will read "Resubmit" afte<br>also be able to view the feedback left on your paper by<br>TNMGRMU EXAMINATIONS | eent click on the "Submit" butt<br>r you make your first submiss<br>clicking the "View" button.<br>Assignment Inb<br>Info<br>() | Class Homepage<br>on to the right of the assignment name. If the Submit<br>ion to the assignment. To view the paper you have si<br>ox: The Tamil Nadu Dr.M.G.R.Medical Uty 201<br>Dates<br>Start 01-Sep-2014 11:27AM<br>Due 30-Oct-2015 11:59PM<br>Post 30-Oct-2015 12:00AM   | : button is grayed out, no submissions<br>ubmitted, click the "View" button. Once<br>14-15 Examinations<br>Similarity<br>12%  | can be made to the assignment. If res<br>the assignment's post date has pass<br>Resubmit View |
| This is your class homepage. To submit to an assignm<br>are allowed the submit button will read "Resubmit" afte<br>also be able to view the feedback left on your paper by<br>TNMGRMU EXAMINATIONS | eent click on the "Submit" butt<br>r you make your first submiss<br>clicking the "View" button.<br>Assignment Inb<br>Info<br>() | Class Homepage<br>on to the right of the assignment name. If the Submit<br>ion to the assignment. To view the paper you have so<br>ox: The Tamil Nadu Dr.M.G.R.Medical Uty 201<br>Dates<br>Start 01-Sep-2014 11:27AM<br>Due 30-Oct-2015 11:59PM<br>Post 30-Oct-2015 12:00AM<br>Copyright @ 1999 - 2015 Tumitin, LLC. All rights reserved. | : button is grayed out, no submissions<br>ubmitted, click the "View" button. Once<br>I4-15 Examinations<br>I2-15 Examinations<br>I2-15 Examinations<br>I2-15 Examinations<br>I2-15 Examinations | can be made to the assignment. If res<br>the assignment's post date has pass<br>Resubmit View |

## **INSTITUTIONAL REVIEW BOARD APPROVAL**

#### OFFICE OF RESEARCH INSTITUTIONAL REVIEW BOARD (IRB) CHRISTIAN MEDICAL COLLEGE, VELLORE, INDIA.

Dr. B.J. Prashantham, M.A., M.A., Dr. Min (Clinical) Director, Christian Counseling Center, Chairperson, Ethics Committee

Dr. Alfred Job Daniel, D Ortho, MS Ortho, DNB Ortho Chairperson, Research Committee & Principal

Dr. Nihal Thomas, MD., MNAMS., DNB (Endo), FRACP (Endo), FRCP (Edin), FRCP (Glasg) Deputy Chairperson Secretary, Ethics Committee, IRB Additional Vice Principal (Research)

October 07, 2014

Dr. Ebenezer Rajadurai PG Registrar Department of Medicine III Christian Medical College, Vellore 632 004

Sub:

#### Fluid Research grant project:

Surveillance of Device Associated Hospital Acquired Infections in Patients admitted in Medical Intensive Care Unit (MICC) and Medical High Dependency Unit (MHDU) in CMC Vellore during a Vyear period Dr. Ebenezer Rajadurai, Metlicine S. Dr. Ramya I, Dr. Nathaniel Samson Devakiruba, Dr. Samuel George Hansdak, Dr. Reter John Victor, Critical Care

Ref. IRB Min Nos 8898 OBSERVET dated 09.06 2014

CHRISTIAN MEDICAL COLLEGE VELLORE INDIA

Dear Dr. Ebenezer Rajadurai,

I enclose the following documents-

Institutional Review Board approval Agreement 17

Could you please sign the agreement and send it to Dr. Nihal Thomas, Addl. Vice Principal (Research), so that the grant money can be released.

With best wishes,

Dr. Nihal Thomas

Institutional Review Board

NIHAL THOMAS D Secretary (Ethics Committee) Christian Medical College, Vellore - 632 002.

Cc: Dr. Ramya, I, Medicine Unit - V, CMC, Vellore

1 of 4

mmiltae Blue, Office of Research, 1st Floor, Carman Block, Christian Medical College, Vellore, Tamil Nadu 632 00/ 3 - 2284294, 2264202 Fax: 0416 - 2262788, 2284481 E-mail: research@cmcvellore.ac.in

#### OFFICE OF RESEARCH INSTITUTIONAL REVIEW BOARD (IRB) CHRISTIAN MEDICAL COLLEGE, VELLORE, INDIA.

Dr. B.J. Prashantham, M.A., M.A., Dr. Min (Clinical) Director, Christian Counseling Center, Chairperson, Ethics Committee.

Dr. Alfred Job Daniel, D Ortho, MS Ortho, DNB Ortho Chairperson, Research Committee & Principal

Dr. Nihal Thomas, MD., MNAMS., DNB (Endo), FRACP (Endo), FRCP (Glas) (EDIN) Deputy Chairperson Secretary, Ethics Committee, IRB Additional Vice Principal (Research)

#### October 07, 2014

Dr. Ebenezer Rajadurai PG Registrar Department of Medicine III Christian Medical College, Vellore 632 004

Sub

#### Fluid Research grant project:

Surveillance of Device Associated Hospital Acquired Infections in Patients admitted in Medical Intensive Care Unit (MICE) and Medical High Dependency Unit (MHDU) in CMC Vellove during an rear period Dr. Ebenezer, Rajadurai, Medicine 3, Dr. Ramya, I, Dr. Nathaniel Samson Devakiruba Dr. Simuel Geotee Hansdas, Dr. Retar John Victor, Critical Care

SIN

3

181 Min To: 1898 (CBSER) + date 09 06 2014 Ref:

Dear Dr. Ebenezer Rajadurai,

LON The Institutional Review Board (Blue, Research and Blues Committee) of the Christian Medical College, Vellore, reviewed and discussed your project rided "Surveillance of Device Associated Hospital Acquired Infections in Patients admitted in Medical Intensive Care Unit (MICU) and Medical High Dependency Unit (MIDU) in CMC Vellore during a 1 year period." on June 9<sup>th</sup> 2014.

The Committee reviewed the following documents:

- 1 **IRB** Application format
- Curriculum Vitae' of Dr. Ebenezer Rajadurai, Dr. Ramya. I, Dr. Nathaniel Samson Devakiruba, Dr. Samuel George Hansdak, Dr. Peter John Victor.
- Data Collection Sheet
- 4. Consent form (English, Tamil, Hindi & Telugu)
- 5. Information Sheet (English, Tamil, Hindi & Telugu)
- 6. No of documents 1-5

The following Institutional Review Board (Blue, Research & Ethics Committee) members were present at the meeting held on June 9th 2014 in the CREST/SACN Conference Room, Christian Medical College, Bagayam, Vellore 632002. 2014

Eihios Committee Blue, Office of Research, 1st Floor, Carman Block, Christian Medical College, Vellore, Tamil Nadu 632 002 Tel: 0416 - 2284294, 2284202 Fax: 0416 - 2262788, 2284481 E-mail : research@cmovellore.ac.in

#### OFFICE OF RESEARCH INSTITUTIONAL REVIEW BOARD (IRB) CHRISTIAN MEDICAL COLLEGE, VELLORE, INDIA.

Dr. B.J. Prashantham, M.A., M.A., Dr. Min (Clinical) Director, Christian Counseling Center, Chairperson, Ethics Committee. Dr. Alfred Job Daniel, D Ortho, MS Ortho, DNB Ortho Chairperson, Research Committee & Principal

Dr. Nihal Thomas, MD., MNAMS., DNB (Endo), FRACP (Endo), FRCP (Glas) (EDIN) Deputy Chairperson Secretary, Ethics Committee, IRB Additional Vice Principal (Research)

| Name                      | Qualification  | Designation  | Other<br>Affiliations                      |
|---------------------------|--|--|--|
| Dr. Paul Ravindran        | PhD, Dip RP,<br>FCCPM  | Professor, Radiotherapy,<br>CMC, Vellore   | Internal,<br>Clinician                     |
| Dr. Vivek Mathew          | MD (Gen. Med.)<br>D.M (Neuro)<br>Dip. NB (Neuro)                                   | Professor,<br>Neurology, CMC, Vellore  | Internal,<br>Clinician                     |
| Dr. Mathew Joseph         | MBBS, MCH  | Professor, Neurosurgery,<br>CMC, Vellore   | Internal,<br>Clinician                     |
| Dr. Bobby John            | MBBS, MD, DM,<br>Ph D, MAMS ERED L   | Professor, Cardiology,CMC,<br>Vellore  | Internal,<br>Clinician                     |
| Dr. Chandrasingh          | MS MICH DMB  | Professor, Elcology,CMC,<br>Vellore  | Internal,<br>Clinician                     |
| Dr. Balamugesh            | MBBS HD (Lac Ma),<br>DM, FECP (USA)  | Printesson Pultrionary<br>Medicing CMO, Vellore  | Internal,<br>Clinician                     |
| Dr. Visalakshi. J         | MAH, PhD   | Lecturer, Dept of<br>Biostauctics, CMC, Vellore  | Internal,<br>Statistician                  |
| Dr. Jacob John            | MBBS, CHRISTIAN MEDIC  | Associate Professor,<br>Community health, CMC  | Internal,<br>Clinician                     |
| Dr. B. J. Prashantham     | MA(Counseling<br>Psychology),<br>MA(Theology),<br>Dr. Min(Clinical<br>Counselling) | Chairperson, Ethics<br>Commutee, IRB. Director,<br>Christian Counseling Centre,<br>Vellore | External,<br>Social Scientist              |
| Mr. Samuel Abraham        | MA, PGDBA,<br>PGDPM, M. Phil, BL.  | Sr. Legal Officer, CMC,<br>Vellore   | Internal,<br>Legal Expert                  |
| Mrs. Pattabiraman         | B. Sc, DSSA  | Social Worker, Vellore   | External,<br>Lay Person                    |
| Dr Jayaprakash<br>Muliyii | B. Sc, MBBS, MD,<br>MPH, Dr PH (Epid),<br>DMHC                                     | Retired Professor, CMC,<br>Vellore   | External,<br>Scientist &<br>Epidemiologist |
| Dr. Vathsala Sadan        | M.Sc, PhD  | Professor, Community Health<br>Nursing, CMC, Vellore                                       | Internal, Nurse                            |

IRB Min No: 8898 [OBSERVE] dated 09.06.2014

3 of 4

Ethics Committee Blue, Office of Research, 1st Floor, Carman Block, Christian Medical College, Vallore, Tamil Nadu 632 002 Tel : 0416 - 2284294, 2284202 Fax : 0416 - 2282788, 2284481 E-mail : research@cmcvellore.ac.in

| rson, Ethics Committee.   | ., Dr. Min (Clinical)<br>ter,   | Dr. Alfred Job Daniel, D Ortho, MS<br>Chairperson, Research Committee &<br>Dr. Nihal Thomas,<br>MD., MNAMS., DNB (Endo), FRAC<br>Deputy Chairperson<br>Secretary, Ethics Committee, IRB<br>Additional Vice Principal (Research)   | Ortho, DNB Ortho<br>Principal<br>P (Endo), FRCP (Glas) (E  |
|---|---|---|--|
| Dr. Shirley David   | M.Sc, PhD   | Professor, Head of<br>Fundamentals Nursing Dept.,<br>College of Nursing, CMC,   | Internal, Nurse  |
| Mr. C. Sampath  | B. Sc, BL   | Legal Expert, Vellore   | External,<br>Legal Expert  |
| Dr. Anuradha Rose   | MBBS, MD  | Assistant Professor,<br>Community Health CMC  | Internal,<br>Clinician   |
| Dr. Nihal Thomas,   | MD, MNAMS,<br>DNB(Endo),<br>FRACP(Endo)<br>FRCP(Endo) FRCP<br>(Gase)  | Professor & Head,<br>Endocrinology. Additional<br>Vice Principal (Research),<br>Deputy Chairperson, IRB,<br>Member Secretary (Ethics<br>Committee), IRB, CMC,   | Internal,<br>Clinician   |
| The Institutional Ethi<br>adverse events occur<br>patient information<br>a copy of the final<br>http://172.16.11.136/<br>address: http://www.o                  | es Committee expects et<br>ring in the course of the<br>/ informed consent. C<br>report/ Respective for<br>Research/RB Polices<br>mch-vettore eru/staric/ | or be intrimed about the progress<br>project, any amendments in the<br>in completion of the study you are<br>diffined from the study you are<br>diffined from the conclusion of the study<br>will be granted for 1 year.  | of the project, any<br>protocol and the<br>expected to submit<br>the following link:<br>e CMC website link |
| A sum of 2,000/- INR.<br>Yours sincerely<br>Dr. Nihal Thomas<br>Secretary (Ethics Con<br>Institutional Review B<br>Cc: Dr. Ramya, 1, Meo<br>IRB Min No: 8898 (O | D. NII<br>M. WAS DEBEN<br>FORETAK<br>Social<br>Christian Medic<br>dicine Unit - V, CMC, V<br>DESERVEL dansé 09.06.2                                       | HALL THOMAS<br>Address (TOP ContRePose<br>Address | 4014   |

### ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

My first words of thanks will be to my guide and mentor Dr.Ramya .I, for her guidance and inspiration in selecting the topic for my dissertation. I would like to thank her for her help in clarifying my doubts and for her counsel in guiding me through each and every step of my thesis. I am also thankful for her patience in the follow up process of the dissertation and help in the analysis of the data.

I would also like to thank my co guides Dr.Samuel Hansdak, Dr.Nathaniel Samson and Dr .J V Peter, for their help.

I would like to thank Dr.Ajoy Ommen for his help in clarifying my doubts during the process of planning for the dissertation.

I would like to thank my parents and my wife Mrs. Rebekah Rajadurai for their constant support and encouragement.

Above all I would like to thank God Almighty for his constant presence and for this opportunity he has given me.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

| AIM17                           |
|---------------------------------|
| OBJECTIVE19                     |
| PRIMARY OUTCOME19               |
| SECONDARY OUTCOME19             |
| REVIEW OF LITERATURE            |
| INTRODUCTION                    |
| HEALTHCARE ASSOCIATED INFECTION |
| VENTILATOR ASSOCIATED PNEUMONIA |
| MATERIALS AND METHODS           |
| SETTING                         |
| PARTICIPANTS                    |
| INCLUSION CRITERIA51            |
| EXCLUSION CRITERIA51            |
| METHODOLOGY                     |
| CASE ASCERTAINMENT              |

13

| FIGURE 2: ALGORITHM FOR STUDY METHODOLOGY55    |
|--|
| VENTILATOR ASSOCIATED EVENT                    |
| CENTRAL LINE ASSOCIATED BLOOD STREAM INFECTION |
| CATHETER ASSOCIATED URINARY TRACT INFECTION    |
| OUTCOME ASSESMENT                              |
| SAMPLE SIZE CALCULATION                        |
| STATISTICAL METHODS                            |
| RESULTS  |
|  |
| INTENSIVE CARE UNIT STATISTICAL DATA           |

| INCIDENCE OF CATHETER ASSOCIATED URINARY TRACT INFECTION |
|--|
|  |
| DISCUSSION   |
| CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS                          |
| ANNEXURE   |
| INFORMATION SHEET  |
| CONSENT FORM104  |
| CLINICAL RESEARCH FORM106                                |



## AIM

Surveillance of the incidence of Device associated hospital acquired infection among medical patients admitted in the Medical Intensive Care Unit and Medical High Dependency Unit in a tertiary care hospital from 1st January 2015 to 30th April 2015 using Centre for Disease Control National Health Safety Network (CDC NHSN) Surveillance Program Protocol.



## **OBJECTIVE**

## **PRIMARY OUTCOME**

To study the incidence of Device Associated Hospital Acquired Infection among those patients admitted in the Medical Intensive Care Unit and Medical High Dependency Unit from 1st January 2015 to 30th April 2015 on ventilator, central line and urinary catheter using Centre for Disease Control National Health Safety Network (CDC NHSN) Surveillance Program Protocol.

## SECONDARY OUTCOME

Microbiological Outcome – To study the profile of organisms causing device associated hospital acquired infection.

Clinical Outcome – Mortality associated with device associated hospital acquired infection.



## **INTRODUCTION**

Modern medicine has seen an increase in patient admission into hospitals due to both communicable and non-communicable diseases. The improvements in medical facilities have facilitated good outcomes of many diseases at the cost of prolonged hospital stay. The critical care units have seen an arithmetic increase in the inpatient beds. This has also seen an increase in the number of hospital acquired infections in the country.

The incidence of hospital acquired infection from the data published by Malhotra et al is 8.78%<sup>i</sup>. The criteria used in this study are based on the CDC criteria published in 2008. The incidence of Ventilator associated Pneumonia in the country is 37%<sup>ii</sup> among patients in intensive care. The incidence of Central line associated blood stream infection was 6.3 per 1000 device days. The incidence of Catheter associated urinary tract infection was 9.08 per 1000 device days.

The studies done in developed countries have shown an incidence of Ventilator associated pneumonia of USA by CDC NHSN criteria was 4.4 per 1000 device days. The incidence of CLABSI by the same criteria was 1.1 per 1000 central line days. The incidence of CAUTI for the year 2014 was 0.7 per 1000 device days.<sup>iii</sup> This shows that there is a great variability in incidence rates of device associated

countries among various countries especially the developed and developing countries.

The common organisms causing Ventilator associated Pneumonia in USA is Pseudomonas (24%) followed by Staph aureus (20.4%) and then streptococcal species followed by Enterobacteriaceae (14.4%). <sup>iv</sup> In India the common organism is Acinetobacter species (41.03%) followed by other gram negative bacilli <sup>v</sup> . The common organism associated with Central line associated blood stream infection in US is Staphylococcus aureus whereas in India it is most commonly Enterobacteriaceae. These data show that the common organisms causing Ventilator associated pneumonia and also the other hospital acquired infection vary greatly between nations and also between centers. A standardized surveillance criteria in each critical care unit is required to monitor device associated infections and also the causative organisms to initiate appropriate preventive strategies.

The previous CDC guidelines for monitoring hospital acquired infections were revised in 2013. The CDC had noted that even in hospitals within its National Health Survey Network had difficulty in reporting Ventilator associated pneumonia as it had required interpretation of Chest radiograph which is not accurate and was biased by the interpreter. The previous CDC guidelines also had clinical criteria which were subjective and so made it difficult for uniform reporting. All this resulted in varied reporting and also incidence rates within the network.<sup>vi</sup> It is for this reason that CDC has revised its criteria to make it objective. The new CDC criteria published in 2013 incorporate all these changes. In this dissertation I have used the new CDC criteria which report Ventilator associated events.

The dissertation attains significance as it has initiated a new surveillance in place in the hospital and it has used the new CDC NHSN criteria published in 2013 which have standardized monitoring of device associated hospital acquired infections using objective criteria. The dissertation and the results of the same will be helpful in initiation of intervention strategies and monitoring the outcome by means of incidence of device associated infection and also the causative organism profile.

## HEALTHCARE ASSOCIATED INFECTION

Healthcare associated infection in any infection is defined as an infection that a person contacts after the person is admitted to the hospital. The infection is not present at the time of admission of the person into the hospital. The infection is acquired by the patient after the patient is admitted into the medical facility. The term is not used for medical personnel who contact the infection during the course of their work when it will be known as an occupational disease.<sup>vii</sup>

Healthcare associated infection is usually taken after a period of stay within the hospital. The time period of 48 hours is usually taken as a standard guide to classify a person as having hospital acquired infection.<sup>viii</sup>

The burden of hospital acquired infections have forced various international organizations like World Health Organization to study and release guidelines towards prevention of them.<sup>ix</sup>

The burden of hospital acquired infections is so high in the population that the incidence of 8.7% was found among all the hospitalized patients in multinational multicentre study that was coordinated by the World Health Organization. The

study had shown that on an average about 1.4 million people on a global level have hospital acquired infections.<sup>x</sup>

The incidence of hospital acquired infections was studied in various studies which were conducted individually in various parts of the world. The study among the eastern Mediterranean population had shown that the incidence of hospital acquired infection in the population was around 11.8%. The studies done among the southeastern Asian countries which are mostly developing counties on an economic basis have shown that the incidence of device associated hospital acquired infections was 10%. This incidence was much higher when compared to the value of 7.7 % in European countries.<sup>xi</sup>

The costs involved in the management of the device associated infections are prohibitive. They cause a huge economic burden on the countries that suffer from the device associated hospital acquired infections. The cost of hospital acquired infection in the United States alone was 35-45 billion US dollars after adjusting for the consumer price index. The economic burden can be reduced up to a maximum of 80% by following surveillance and implementing newer infection control techniques<sup>xii</sup>. The Economic burden in United Kingdom is 1.06 billion pounds.<sup>xiii</sup>

Surveillance remains the cornerstone of management of hospital acquired infections. The various features of an ideal surveillance program are illustrated in the figures below. The surveillance program involves Doctors and Nurses. The program involves training staff for surveillance and educating the on floor staff including doctors, nurses and housekeeping staff about sterile techniques in prevention of hospital acquired infection. It is important to keep people as the centre of attention. It is illustrated in the following box 1.

Box 1

## People are at the centre of the phenomenon:

- as main reservoir and source of microorganisms
- as main transmitter, notably during treatment
- as receptor for microorganisms, thus becoming a new reservoir.

Desired Characteristics of Hospital acquired infection surveillance program: Box

2

Box 2 xiv

## Characteristics of the system:

- timeliness, simplicity, flexibility
- acceptability, reasonable cost
- representativeness (or exhaustiveness)

## Quality of the data provided:

- sensitivity, specificity
- predictive value (positive and negative)
- usefulness, in relation to the goals of the surveillance (quality indicators)

Box 3: Surveillance is a continuous circular process that continues even after intervention to monitor the impact of the preventive measures.



The key features of a good Surveillance study is illustrated in the following box 4.

Box 4: Features of good surveillance study

- Active surveillance (prevalence and incidence studies)
- Targeted surveillance (site-, unit-, priority-oriented)
- · Appropriately trained investigators
- Standardized methodology
- Risk-adjusted rates for comparisons

## VENTILATOR ASSOCIATED PNEUMONIA

Ventilator associated pneumonia is described as the occurrence of hospital acquired infection in patients who have been intubated and connected to a ventilator and have developed infection secondary to the device.

The important points to note is that the patient should not have had the infection at the time of admission into the setup and also the patient should have been on the ventilator for sufficient amount of time before he had developed the infection. The duration after which the patient is said to have developed the ventilator associated pneumonia is taken as 48 hours in most criteria.<sup>xv</sup>

The epidemiology of device associated infections varies greatly between countries and also between various centers within the country. The incidence of ventilator associated pneumonia in the United States of America as estimated by the Centre for disease control criteria was 4.4 per 1000 ventilator days.<sup>xvi</sup> The incidence of ventilator associated pneumonia in India as reported in a study in south India which was found to be 30.6 per 1000 ventilator days.<sup>xvii</sup> The incidence of ventilator associated pneumonia in a hospital in north India was found to be 31.7 per 1000 device days as per previous guidelines.<sup>xviii</sup>

The incidence in other centers around the country also varied. Most centre report in the form of number of device days whereas others report in the form of percentages.<sup>xix</sup> The incidence rates also vary among developed countries. The incidence in the United Kingdom was found to be 9.2 per 1000 device days.<sup>xx</sup> The incidence in France was found to be 20.6 per 1000 device days.<sup>xxi</sup>

This varied incidence of device associated infections between centres's can be secondary to difference in the criteria they use like the CDC criteria or the ECDC criteria. It can also be due to difference in presentation and prevalence of organisms. The difference between temperate and tropical climates the difference can also be due to the economical condition of the countries and the specialized sterile techniques they might be following.

The evaluation of Ventilator associated pneumonia varies because even within India there have different scales used in different study. The clinical pulmonary infection severity scale (CPIS) is one such scale. The other method for surveillance is the modified Centre for disease control National Health Survey Network guidelines. Clinical Pulmonary Infection Score (CPIS) is one of the most widely used methods for diagnosis. It was initially put forward in 1991 and it uses a combination of weighted clinical and microbiological criteria for the diagnosis of VAP. Box 5 illustrates the same.

## Box 5: CLINICAL PULMONARY INFECTION SCORE

| Clinical Parameter                                      | Points |
|---|--------|
| Temperature (°C)<br>≥ 36.5 and ≤ 38.4                   | 0      |
| ≥ 38.5 and ≤ 38.9                                       | 1      |
| ≥ 39.0 or ≤ 36.0  | 2      |
| Blood leukocytes (x 10 <sup>3</sup> /mm <sup>3</sup> )  |        |
| ≥ 4 and ≤ 11  | 0      |
| < 4 or > 11   | 1      |
| Band forms≥50%  | Add 1  |
| Tracheal secretions                                     |        |
| Absent  | 0      |
| Nonpurulent   | 1      |
| Purulent  | 2      |
| Oxygenation: PaO <sub>2</sub> :FiO <sub>2</sub> (mm Hg) |        |
| > 240 or ARDS   | 0      |
| ≤ 240 and no evidence of ARDS                           | 2      |
| Infiltrate on pulmonary radiography                     |        |
| None  | 0      |
| Diffuse or patchy                                       | 1      |
| Localized   | 2      |
| Pathogenic bacteria on tracheal-aspirate culture        |        |
| Rare, light quantity, or no growth                      | 0      |
| Moderate or heavy quantity                              | 1      |
| Also seen on Gram's stain                               | Add 1  |

 $PaO_2$  = arterial partial pressure of oxygen;  $FiO_2$  = fraction of inspired oxygen; ARDS = acute respiratory distress syndrome.

A study done to assess the accuracy of the CPIS score showed a sensitivity of 45.8% and specificity of 60.4%, when used at a cut off value of 6, and using autopsy findings as the gold standard. Earlier studies showed variability in sensitivity and specificity ranging from 72% to 77% and 85% to 42% respectively. In addition, this score was found to be subjective, with high inter observer variability (kappa-0.16). The drawbacks of poor sensitivity and subjectivity of the scoring system has prompted a re-look at how we diagnose ventilator associated pneumonias.<sup>xxiixxiii</sup>

The Centre for disease control national health survey network criteria also known as the NHSN criteria is a new tool for the surveillance of device associated hospital acquired infections. The criteria are different from the previous CDC criteria as it does not include the X ray findings in the diagnosis of Ventilator associated pneumonia. <sup>xxiv</sup>

The new CDC NHSN criteria for the diagnosis of Ventilator associated pneumonia is illustrated in the following figures.

## BOX 6. VENTILATOR ASSOCIATED CONDITION

Patient has a baseline period of stability or improvement on the ventilator, defined by  $\geq 2$  calendar days of stable or decreasing daily minimum\* FiO<sub>2</sub> or PEEP values. The baseline period is defined as the 2 calendar days immediately preceding the first day of increased daily minimum PEEP or FiO<sub>2</sub>.

Daily minimum defined by lowest value of FiO2 or PEEP during a palendar day that is maintained for at least 1 hour.

After a period of stability or improvement on the ventilator, the patient has at least one of the following indicators of worsening oxygenation:

- Increase in daily minimum<sup>\*</sup> FiO<sub>2</sub> of ≥ 0.20 (20 points) over the daily minimum FiO<sub>2</sub> in the baseline period, sustained for ≥ 2 calendar days.
- Increase in daily minimum<sup>\*</sup> PEEP values of ≥ 3 cmH<sub>2</sub>O over the daily minimum PEEP in the baseline period<sup>†</sup>, sustained for ≥ 2 calendar days.

<sup>\*</sup>Daily minimum defined by lowest value of FiO<sub>2</sub> or PEEP during a calendar day that is maintained for at least 1 hour.

<sup>1</sup>Daily minimum PEEP values of 0-5 cmH<sub>2</sub>O are considered equivalent for the purposes of VAE surveillance.


#### BOX 8. POSSIBLE VENTILATOR ASSOCIATED PNEUMONIA



On or after calendar day 3 of mechanical ventilation and within 2 calendar days before or after the onset of worsening oxygenation, ONE of the following criteria is met:

- 1) Purulent respiratory secretions (from one or more specimen collections)
  - Defined as secretions from the lungs, bronchi, or trachea that contain ≥ 25 neutrophils and ≤ 10 squamous epithelial cells per low power field [lpf, x100].
  - If the laboratory reports semi-quantitative results, those results must be equivalent to the above quantitative thresholds.
  - See additional instructions for using the purulent respiratory secretions criterion in the VAE Protocol.

#### OR

 Positive culture (qualitative, semi-quantitative or quantitative) of sputum<sup>\*</sup>, endotracheal aspirate<sup>\*</sup>, bronchoalveolar lavage<sup>\*</sup>, lung tissue, or protected specimen brushing<sup>\*</sup>

\*Excludes the following:

- · Normal respiratory/oral flora, mixed respiratory/oral flora or equivalent
- · Candida species or yeast not otherwise specified
- Coagulase-negative Staphylococcus species
- Enterococcus species

### BOX 9: PROBABLE VENTILATOR ASSOCIATED PNEUMONIA



On or after calendar day 3 of mechanical ventilation and within 2 calendar days before or after the onset of worsening oxygenation, ONE of the following criteria is met:

 Purulent respiratory secretions (from one or more specimen collections—and defined as for possible VAP)

AND one of the following (see Table 2):

- Positive culture of endotracheal aspirate\*, ≥ 10<sup>5</sup> CFU/ml or equivalent semiquantitative result
- Positive culture of bronchoalveolar lavage\*, ≥ 10<sup>4</sup> CFU/ml or equivalent semiquantitative result
- Positive culture of lung tissue, ≥ 10<sup>4</sup> CFU/g or equivalent semi-quantitative result
- Positive culture of protected specimen brush\*,  $\geq 10^3$  CFU/ml or equivalent semi-quantitative result

\*Same organism exclusions as noted for Possible VAP.

#### OR

2) One of the following (without requirement for purulent respiratory secretions):

- Positive pleural fluid culture (where specimen was obtained during thoracentesis or initial placement of chest tube and NOT from an indwelling chest tube)
- Positive lung histopathology
- Positive diagnostic test for Legionella spp.
- Positive diagnostic test on respiratory secretions for influenza virus, respiratory syncytial virus, adenovirus, parainfluenza virus, rhinovirus, human metapneumovirus, coronavirus

The CDC guidelines have defined Ventilator associated condition as the event that occurs after 48 hours of admission and it usually results in increase in the ventilator parameters as mentioned in the Box 6.

Infection related Ventilator associated complication is a condition that has a worsening of the ventilator parameters and there also presence of clinical and laboratory evidence of infection. The presence of hyperthermia or hypothermia or the presence of leukocytosis or leucopenia along with a new antibiotic being started is the diagnostic criteria for this condition. Box 7 illustrates the same.

Possible Ventilator associated pneumonia as illustrated by the box 9 is the presence of purulent secretions or positive culture. Probable Ventilator associated pneumonia is the presence of purulent secretions and positive cultures with clinically relevant colony counts. The study also includes diagnosis by histopathology and also other detection techniques for viruses.

### PATHOPHYSIOLOGY OF VENTILATOR ASSOCIATED PNEUMONIA

The pathophysiology of ventilator associated pneumonia involves the endotracheal tube serving as a bypass to the mucociliary defense mechanism. The endotracheal tube bypasses the mucociliary defense mechanism which involves clearing of particles by the cilia and also the humidification of inspired air by the nostrils. This provides a direct entry of organisms into the bronchus and the lungs.<sup>xxv</sup>

The trachea also becomes a source of biofilm which consists of mucous and also the microorganisms colonizing the surface of the endotracheal tube. These organisms can subsequently enter the bronchus and lungs and cause ventilator associated pneumonia.

The use of humidifiers from external sources can also serve as a way of entry of the microorganisms if they are not sterilized in a prescribed manner.<sup>xxvi</sup>

### PREVENTION OF VENTILATOR ASSOCIATED PNEUMONIA

Ventilator associated pneumonia can be prevented by various preventive strategies.

The use of closed suctioning of the endotracheal tube has shown to reduce the contact of the care giver and the endotracheal tube and so to reduce the incidence of ventilator associated pneumonia.<sup>xxvii</sup>

The positioning of patient to adequately clear bronchial secretions and good chest physiotherapy will prevent orthostatic pneumonia and ventilator associated pneumonia.<sup>xxviii</sup>

The use of subglottic suction is also shown to prevent pooling of secretions and colonization of the external tracheal surface. It also prevents development of ventilator associated pneumonia.<sup>xxix</sup>

Strict isolation of patients with multidrug resistant organisms is also prescribed but studies are yet to demonstrate better outcomes with the same. The universally accepted method is to use strict patient to patient barrier with hand washing.



### CENTRAL LINE ASSOCIATED BLOOD STREAM INFECTION

### Epidemiology

Central venous catheters (CVC) are being used with increasing frequency in hospitals both in an ICU setting as well as outside ICU's. The infection of these CVC's is becoming an increasingly large problem worldwide. The incidence of central line infections in the USA is estimated to be 1.65 per 1000 central line days amounting to 23,000 infection events.<sup>xxx</sup> This number is higher in the developing countries, with a large surveillance study conducted among ICU's in Latin America, Asia, Africa and Europe reporting a pooled rate of 6.8 per 1000 central line days. <sup>xxxi</sup>. Studies done in India have also reported infection rates ranging from 8.75-9.6 per 1000 central line days. <sup>xxxii</sup>

One possible reason for the increased incidence in the developing countries is the lack of strict adherence to aseptic precautions during insertion of the lines, as well as the lack of clearly defined central line care bundles.

### **Clinical features**

The importance of CRBSI is evident from the increased mortality that it causes, with one recent systematic review estimating almost two fold increased risk of mortality among those with CRBSI, even after matching for severity of illness. Another study 39 estimated an increase in ICU stay by 13 days in those with CRBSI and a crude mortality rate of 28%. <sup>xxxiii</sup>

#### **Risk factors**

The risk factors for CRBSI can be classified a patient, personnel and device related factors.

The patient related factors include the degree of severity of the underlying illness, immunosuppression especially granulocytopenia, malnutrition, loss of integrity of skin especially in burns. <sup>xxxiv</sup>

Operator related factors include degree of adherence to aseptic technique during placement of the line, as well as catheter site care.

Catheter related factors are the site of placement of the line, the duration of the line and characteristics of the line such as the material, number of lumens etc. <sup>xxxv</sup>

#### **Definitions:**

The NHSN monitors the CRBSI, and publishes data on the yearly incidence of CRBSI.

The surveillance definition used by the NHSN is:

"Isolation of a recognized pathogen from blood culture(s), the presence of clinical signs of sepsis and/or shock (e.g., fever, chills, or hypotension), a determination that the infection is not from other sources, and confirmation that the organism is not a contaminant"<sup>xxxvi</sup>

#### **Diagnostic criteria and methods**

Although the above definition serves as a useful guide, the clinical diagnosis of a catheter related infection still remains difficult because the clinical signs of inflammation at the catheter site are specific but not sensitive, and hence may not always be present. Secondly the clinical signs of systemic inflammation are very nonspecific and can be caused due to a host of other reasons, especially in a critically ill patient.

For a patient with a suspected CRBSI, paired blood samples drawn from both the central line and a peripheral vein must be labeled and sent to the laboratory. One study demonstrated that if samples were not drawn from all the lumens of a multi-lumen catheter, then the infection could be missed in almost 30% of the

patients. If a sample cannot be obtained from the central line, then two or more samples need to be taken from the catheter lumen and sent for culture. However, the need for cultures from all the lumens is not well defined in this setting.

Numerous methods for the diagnosis of CRBSI are available, with some necessitating catheter removal for facilitation of diagnosis, and other newer methods where the catheter can remain in place. <sup>xxxvii</sup>

### CATHETER ASSOCIATED URINARY TRACT INFECTION

Catheter associated urinary tract infection is defined by CDC NHSN criteria as urinary infection associated with clinical symptoms of fever and associated loin or suprapubic pain along with pyuria . The urine culture from the patient should grow significant colonies of the pathogen. <sup>xxxviii</sup>

Urine infection secondary to urinary catheter in ICU is encountered either due to colonization or due to an infection. There can be formation of biofilm on the catheter which can penetrate the uroepithelium during micro abrasions during the ICU stay. There can also be poor handling of the catheters causing urinary infections.<sup>xxxix</sup>

The incidence of Catheter associated urinary tract infection according to CDC NHSN criteria was found to be 0.7 per 1000 urinary catheter days.<sup>xl</sup> Indian data has shown the incidence of Catheter associated urinary tract infection to be 9.8 per 1000 device days.<sup>xli</sup>

The incidence of the catheter associated urinary tract infection involves various definitions leading to non standardization of the data. This study used the CDC NHSN criteria 2013.



# 

# **MATERIALS AND METHODS**

This study is a prospective cohort study

All patients above 14 years of age admitted in Intensive Care Units (Medical Intensive care unit and Medical High Dependency unit) who develop a hospital acquired infection.

The Patients were studied for Ventilator associated Events, Central line associated blood stream infections and Catheter associated urinary tract infection.

### SETTING

The setting of the study is a tertiary care centre. The patients admitted in the Medical Intensive Care Unit and Medical High Dependency Unit are critically ill patients who have shifted into the Intensive care unit from the emergency services or from medical wards. The patients are usually intubated for invasive ventilation. The setting has both open and closed suction systems to clear secretions from the endotracheal tube. The patients are also on urinary catheter after they are intubated in the intensive care unit. Since most of the patients are sick and require ionotropes they require central lines. The type of central lines used are triple lumens which are placed either as subclavian , jugular or femoral catheters.

The patients studied are critically ill patients requiring support through devices and are at high risk for hospital acquired infections and are ideal for a surveillance program.

### **PARTICIPANTS**

The participants in the study were medical patients who were admitted from wards and from emergency into the Medical Intensive care unit and Medical High Dependency unit from January 1, 2015 to April 30, 2015.

# **INCLUSION CRITERIA**

All medical patients admitted from Emergency services or medical wards into Medical Intensive care or high dependency unit above the age of 14 years.

### **EXCLUSION CRITERIA**

Patients below the age of 14 years

Patients not admitted under the medical units

Patients or relatives not willing to give consent for the study

# METHODOLOGY

The study was presented as a proposal before the Institutional review board and the elite panel had personally interviewed the principal investigator and the dissertation guide before approving the study methodology and approving patient recruitment.

### CASE ASCERTAINMENT

All patients who were admitted in the Medical Intensive care unit or the medical high dependency unit were included. The Patients usually arrive from the Emergency services or the Medical ward if they are clinically and by laboratory parameters found to be critically ill requiring Intensive care. The patients and relatives were discussed regarding the study on hospital acquired infections and their consent was obtained.

The study was carried out daily at 11pm by the principal investigator in the intensive care unit as this was the time when patient census is usually taken in the Intensive care unit and the variation in the numbers are minimum. The principal investigator carried out the consent procedure. The principal investigator also collected the demographic details, the associated co morbidities and the data according to the Centre for disease control National Health Survey Network

criteria. The patients were then observed everyday at around 1 pm for clinical symptoms and signs that they developed during the day and note was made. The patients were followed up to 2 days after discharge from Intensive care unit. The culture reports of all the patients were also followed up by the principal investigator.

The demographic details of all patients were collected. All patients had a detailed history and examination done. The associated co morbidities of the patients were studied. They were also noted. The patients were monitored daily at a specific time. The records were studied for any fever or urinary symptoms. A note of the total and differential white blood cell counts of the patients was made. The patient was subsequently monitored according to the new centre for disease control criteria.

If the patient had fever after two days of admission and also had purulent sputum and had an increase in the ventilator setting in the form of increase in Peak end expiratory pressure of 3 cm of water or the fractional oxygen of 20 percentage along with an increase in the white blood cell count then they were considered to have a infected ventilator associated event. The patient had an endotracheal aspirate done and that was followed up for purulent sputum as indicated by the leukocytes and less epithelial cells and also for the sputum culture. In case the patient was culture positive then ventilator associated pneumonia was diagnosed.

In case the patient has fever and also has an infected central line then the diagnosis of central line associated blood stream infection is made.

In case of the patient having urinary complaints with associated loin pain and the urine is showing pyuria along with the urine culture being positive for pathogens then the person is diagnosed to have catheter associated urinary tract infection.



### VENTILATOR ASSOCIATED EVENT

A Medical patient who has given consent to participate in the study is monitored daily for any fever. The fever is considered to be hospital acquired only if the fever develops after the second day of admission. Any fever that develops before the second day of admission is due to the pre existing illness or due to infection from a ward or hospital that the patient had been admitted into before his arrival into the Medical Intensive care unit or high dependency unit. After the second day any fever that the patient develops is recorded. The associated symptoms and signs are noted.

In case there is an increase in the ventilator setting with an increase in peak end expiratory pressure above 3 cm of water or the increase in fraction of inspired oxygen increases by 20% then the patient is considered to have developed a Ventilator associated condition.

If the patient has developed ventilator associated condition and there is presence of hyperthermia as noted by a temperature above 38 C or hypothermia as noted by a temperature of 36 C or if there is leukocytosis with an increase in WBC count of above or equal to 12000 cells per mm3 or leucopenia with a WBC counts of less than 4000 cells per mm3 and an antibiotic was started and continued for more than four days then it is considered as a Infective ventilator associated condition.

The patient with infective ventilator associated condition is monitored for any purulent sputum. This is monitored by sputum examination which shows more than or equal to 25 neutrophils and less than 10 epithelial cells. There is also a positive qualitative culture. If this criterion is fulfilled then it is known as Possible Ventilator Associated Pneumonia.

The patient with infective ventilator associated condition who has purulent respiratory secretions which shows more than or equal to 25 neutrophils and less than 10 epithelial cells and also a quantitative culture which shows more than 10^5 colony forming units in the endotracheal aspirate or more than 10^4 colonies in the bronchioalveolar lavage or biopsy of lung tissue or more than 10^3 colony forming units in the brush specimen of the specimen is taken as Probable ventilator associated pneumonia.

Probable ventilator associated pneumonia is also considered is there is a positive pleural fluid culture when the culture is obtained by procedure such as thoracocentesis. A positive lung histopathology is also considered as probable ventilator associated pneumonia. When tests are positive for diagnosis of legionella also it is considered as Probable ventilator associated pneumonia. A positive serological testing for RSV is also considered as Probable ventilator associated pneumonia.







### **CENTRAL LINE ASSOCIATED BLOOD STREAM INFECTION**

The patient is said to have Central line associated blood stream infection if they have fever after admission. The fever should have developed two days after admission and should not be related to infection at any other site. The fever can be associated with chills or hypotension. The blood culture should grow a pathogen or at least two blood cultures should grow a commensal. The organism in the blood culture should not be related to a ventilator associated infection or a urinary catheter associated infection.

The definition of blood stream infection associated with central line includes the central line and also dialysis catheter. The definition does not include peripheral lines. Arterial lines are not included in the study. The site of insertion of the central line is noted as that can affect the outcome. The date of insertion of the central line and the date of change of the same is also noted.

The patient with the infection is then monitored. The organism that grows in the blood culture is made a note of and the sensitivity is also noted. The outcome of the patient is also noted. The analysis consists of the presence of central line associated infection and the causative organism.

FIGURE 4: ALGORITHM FOR CENTRAL LINE ASSOCIATED BLOOD STREAM INFECTION



### CATHETER ASSOCIATED URINARY TRACT INFECTION

Catheter associated urinary tract infection is when there are urinary symptoms of suprapubic tenderness or there is costovertebral angle pain or tenderness along with or exclusive of a hyperthermia of 38 C. The patient should also demonstrate a positive urine dipstick test foe the leukocyte esterase which is very sensitive for pyuria or nitrite which is specific for bacteriuria. There can also be a pyuria as demonstrate in microscopy of the urine showing more than ten white blood cells. The patient can also have presence of microorganisms in urine analysis which is done with grams stain.

The patient is screened for urinary catheter associated infection if the patient was already on urinary catheter for 2 days preceding the fever and the fever was after 2 days of admission. The urine cultures are then followed up and if it grows pathogens it is taken as positive. The colony count is also noted as the catheter associated urinary infection is classified as 1a and 2a based on a colony count more than  $10^5$  colonies or a colony count of  $10^3$  to  $10^5$  colonies. They are also classified as asymptomatic bacteriuria if they did not have any urinary symptoms and their urine had grown pathogens in significant colonies.

FIGURE 5: ALGORITHM FOR CATHETER ASSOCIATED URINARY TRACT INFECTION



64

### **OUTCOME ASSESMENT**

#### **Primary Outcome**

The Primary outcome of the study was to analyze the incidence of device associated hospital acquired infections in the form of ventilator associated event, Central line associated blood stream infection and Catheter associated urinary tract infection.

The patients who were admitted under the study were followed up during the course of their stay in Intensive care unit or high dependency unit and also for two days after their discharge into the ward for any device associated infection.

#### **Secondary Outcome**

#### Microbiological outcome

The microbiological outcome that was studied in the patients was the causative organism in the case of device associated hospital acquired infection.

### **Clinical Outcome**

The clinical outcome that was studied is the patient mortality.

# SAMPLE SIZE CALCULATION

The incidence of device associated infection was taken as 46 per 1000 device days for ventilator associated infections

The Precision was taken as 10%

The confidence interval was taken as 95% confidence interval

The sample size was calculated as

Sample size  $n = 4*46*54/10^{2}$ 

The sample size was 100

If 20% dropout was to be accounted for then the sample size was to be kept at 120

Since it is an observational study the samples to be included were all the patients for a period of 4 months.

# STATISTICAL METHODS

The study is an observational study.

The patients were recruited prospectively.

The data was collected in data forms in Epidata software.

The analysis was done using STATA software.

The analysis method that was used to study the mortality statistics in the patient group was Pearson's chi test.

The Pearson's chi square test is used to test the categorical data to evaluate if the relationship between them arose by chance. It is for the use in unpaired data from large samples. The value is significant based on the p value within the significant range of less than or equal to 0.05.



### INTENSIVE CARE UNIT STATISTICAL DATA

The study was done between 1<sup>st</sup> January 2014 to 30<sup>th</sup> April 2014 in Medical Intensive care unit and Medical high dependency unit.

The total number of patients included in the study was 283. This was more than the calculated sample size as this was an observational study over the span of 4 months and so all patients during this time period were included.

The average number of patients per year in the medical intensive care unit and high dependency unit is 1240.

The total number of patient days studied was 1444.

The total number of Ventilator days studied in the patients was 1216 ventilator days.

The total number of Central line days studied in these patients was 1361 central line days.

The total number of Urinary Catheter days studied in these patients was 1392 urinary catheter days.

The total number of patient days was 1444 days. The patient days are more as patients had their devices removed at times before they were shifted to ward. The central lines and urinary catheters are usually removed at the earliest to prevent device associated infections as the chance of infection increases with duration.  $^{\mbox{xlii}}$ 

# BOX 11: INTENSIVE CARE UNIT STATISTICAL DATA

| DEVICE                | DAYS |
|-----------------------|------|
| VENTILATOR DAYS       | 1216 |
| CENTRAL LINE DAYS     | 1361 |
| URINARY CATHETER DAYS | 1392 |


## **BASELINE CHARECTERISTICS**

The patient group that was studied was 283 medical patients between 1<sup>st</sup> January 2015 to 30<sup>th</sup> April 2015. The patients were heterogeneous among the various age groups.

There were 146 men making up 51.5 % of the study population. The women were 137 in number.

The age groups of the patients were 123 patients between the ages of 15 to 40 who made up the majority of the patients accounting for 43.4% of the study population. There were 86 patients in the age group of 41 and 60 accounting for 30.3% of the study population. There were 74 patients above the age group of 60 accounting for 26.1% of the patients.

The baseline comorbidities showed that there are 87 diabetics accounting for 30.74 % of the study group and 71 hypertensives who account for 25.08% of the study group. There were 53 patients with ischemic heart disease who account for 18.7 % of patients of the study population. There were also 4.5% patients with COPD and 4.2% patients with chronic ethanol abuse.

The baseline diagnosis of the patients had shown that 15.1% of the patients had presented with Organophosphorus poisoning, 13.7% of the patients had presented with Community acquired pneumonia, 9.1% of the patients had presented with some form of tuberculosis, 8.1% of the patients had swine flu , 4.5% of patients had presented with alleged history of snake bite and 3.8% had presented with Dengue.

## **BASELINE CHARECTERISTICS**

## BOX 12: AGE AT PRESENTATION

| AGE          | NUMBER | PERCENTAGE |
|--------------|--------|------------|
| 15-40        | 123    | 43.4%      |
| 41-60        | 86     | 30.3%      |
| MORE THAN 60 | 74     | 26.1%      |

75

## BOX 13: SEX OF THE POPULATION

| SEX    | NUMBER | PERCENTAGE |
|--------|--------|------------|
| MALE   | 146    | 51.5%      |
| FEMALE | 137    | 48.5%      |

## **BASELINE COMORBIDITIES**

## **BOX 14: BASELINE COMORBIDITIES**

| COMORBIDITY     | NUMBER | PERCENT- |
|-----------------|--------|----------|
|                 |        | AGE      |
| DIABETES        | 87     | 30.74%   |
| MELLITUS        |        |          |
| SYSTEMIC        | 71     | 25.08%   |
| HYPERTENSION    |        |          |
| COPD            | 13     | 4.5%     |
| ISCHAEMIC HEART | 53     | 18.7%    |
| DISEASE         |        |          |
| CHRONIC ETHANOL | 12     | 4.2%     |
| USE             |        |          |

# BOX 15: BASELINE DIAGNOSIS

| DIAGNOSIS                          | NUMBER | PERCENTAGE |
|------------------------------------|--------|------------|
| ORGANOPHOSPHORUS<br>POISONING      | 43     | 15.1%      |
| COMMUNITY<br>ACQUIRED<br>PNEUMONIA | 39     | 13.7%      |
| TUBERCULOSIS                       | 26     | 9.1%       |
| SWINE FLU                          | 23     | 8.1%       |
| SNAKE BITE                         | 13     | 4.5%       |
| DENGUE                             | 11     | 3.8%       |

## INCIDENCE OF VENTILATOR ASSOCIATED EVENT

## BOX 16: VENTILATOR ASSOCIATED EVENT

| ТҮРЕ  | NUMBER |
|---|--------|
| VENTILATOR ASSOCIATED<br>CONDITION              | 12     |
| INFECTIVE VENTILATOR<br>ASSOCIATED COMPLICATION | 2      |
| POSSIBLE VENTILATOR<br>ASSOCIATED PNEUMONIA     | 3      |
| PROBABLE VENTILATOR<br>ASSOCIATED PNEUMONIA     | 33     |

## BOX 17: MORTALITY IN VENTILATOR ASSOCIATED EVENT

| ТҮРЕ  | DEATH      | DISCHARGE | TOTAL |
|---|------------|-----------|-------|
| NO VAE  | 45 (19.3%) | 188       | 233   |
| VAC   | 10 (83%)   | 2         | 12    |
| I VAC   | 1 (50%)    | 1         | 2     |
| POSSIBLE<br>VAP                                   | 2 (66.6%)  | 1         | 3     |
| PROBABLE<br>VAP                                   | 19 (57.5%) | 14        | 33    |
| TOTAL   | 77         | 206       | 283   |
| Pearson chi <sup>2</sup> (4) = 44.6671 Pr = 0.000 |            |           |       |

| ORGANISM                 | FREQUENCY | PERCENTAGE |
|--------------------------|-----------|------------|
| Acinetobacter            | 24        | 47%        |
| NFGNB                    | 13        | 25.5%      |
| Klebsiella               | 5         | 9.8%       |
| Pseudomonas              | 4         | 7%         |
| Enterobacter             | 2         | 3.9%       |
| Proteus                  | 1         | 1.9%       |
| Enterococcus             | 1         | 1.9%       |
| Staphylococcus<br>aureus | 1         | 1.9%       |

# BOX 18: ORGANISMS CAUSING VENTILATOR ASSOCIATED EVENT



### INCIDENCE OF VENTILATOR ASSOCIATED EVENT

The incidence of Ventilator associated event is calculated as the sum of the incidence of Ventilator associated condition along with Infective ventilator associated complication and Ventilator associated pneumonia.

The Incidence of ventilator associated event is calculated by the dividing ventilator associated events by the total ventilator days and multiplying by 1000.

The total number of Ventilator days = 1216 device days

The total number of patients with ventilator associated pneumonia = 50 patients

Incidence of VAE = Total VAE \* 1000 / Total ventilator days

The incidence of ventilator associated event was calculated to be 41 per 1000 ventilator days.

The mortality in Ventilator associated event group was 64 % when compared to the mortality in the group with Ventilator associated event which was 19.3%.

The mortality was highest in the Ventilator associated condition group with 83 % mortality.

The mortality in Ventilator associated event was significant with the Pearson  $chi^2$ = 44.6671 Pr = 0.000 which was statistically significant.

# INCIDENCE OF CENTRAL LINE ASSOCIATED BLOOD STREAM INFECTION

# BOX: 19 ORGANISMS CAUSING CENTRAL LINE ASSOCIATED BLOOD STREAM INFECTION

| Organism                                      | Frequency | Percentage |  |
|---|-----------|------------|--|
| NFGNB   | 4         | 44%        |  |
| Klebsiella                                    | 2         | 22%        |  |
| Enterococcus faecium                          | 1         | 11%        |  |
| Enterococcus                                  | 1         | 11%        |  |
| Acinetobacter                                 | 1         | 11%        |  |
| NFGNB – Non Fermenting Gram Negative Bacteria |           |            |  |



# BOX 20: MORTALITY IN CENTRAL LINE ASSOCIATED BLOOD STREAM INFECTION

|           | Death    | Discharge | Total |
|-----------|----------|-----------|-------|
| No CLABSI | 74(27%)  | 200       | 274   |
| CLABSI    | 3(33.3%) | б         | 9     |

Pearson chi<sup>2</sup>(2) = 0.8072 Pr = 0.668

The incidence of central line associated blood stream infection is calculated by dividing the total number of central line associated blood stream infection by the total number of device days and multiplying it by 1000.

The central line associated blood stream infection (CLABSI) is calculated as a sum of both types of blood stream infection. The Centre for disease control National health survey network criteria is taken for the calculation.

The total number of Central line days = 1361 days

The total number of CLABSI = 9 patients

Incidence of CLABSI = number of CLABSI/total number of central line days \*1000

= (9/1361)\*1000

= 6.6 per 1000 device days

The incidence of Central line associated blood stream infection was 6.6 per 1000 device days. The mortality associated with patients with Central line associated blood stream infection is 33% against a mortality of 27% in patients without Central line associated blood stream infection. The difference was not statistically significant with

Pearson  $chi^2 = 0.8072$  Pr = 0.668.

# INCIDENCE OF CATHETER ASSOCIATED URINARY TRACT INFECTION

# BOX 21: ORGANISMS CAUSING CATHETER ASSOCIATED URINARY TRACT INFECTIONS

| Organism      | Frequency | Percentage |
|---------------|-----------|------------|
| Enterococcus  | 3         | 75%        |
| Acinetobacter | 1         | 25%        |

# BOX 22: MORTALITY ASSOCIATED WITH CATHETER ASSOCIATED URINARY TRACT INFECTION

|          | Death      | Discharge | Total |
|----------|------------|-----------|-------|
| No CAUTI | 76 (27.2%) | 203       | 279   |
| CAUTI    | 1 (25%)    | 3         | 4     |

Pearson  $chi^2(3) = 3.7968$  Pr = 0.284

The incidence of device associated hospital acquired infection is calculated by dividing the total number of catheter associated urinary tract infection (CAUTI) by the total number of urinary catheter days and multiplying by 1000.

The total number of urinary catheter days = 1392 device days

The total number of CAUTI = 4 patients

Incidence of CAUTI = (CAUTI/number of catheter days)\*1000

= (4/1392) \* 1000

= 2.87 per 1000 device days

The incidence of Catheter associated urinary tract infection was found to be 2.87 per 1000 device days. The mortality associated with patients who had developed catheter associated urinary tract infection was 25% when compared to those who have not developed an infection. The Pearson chi2 = 3.7968 with a Pr = 0.284 which was not statistically significant.

### DISCUSSION

The study has shown in this centre the incidence of device associated hospital acquired infections is akin to the national available statistics. The incidence of ventilator associated events was found to be 41 per 1000 device days. The study in United states using the previous Centre for disease control National health survey criteria have shown an incidence of 4.1 per 1000 device days. The study has shown the vast differences in the incidence of organisms between two different countries with one being a developed nation and the other a developing country. The common organisms reported in the study in United States was Pseudomonas which accounted for 24% of the cases followed by Staphylococcus and Streptococcus both of which had accounted for 31% of the cases.<sup>xliii</sup> This study had shown a different profile of organisms. The most common organisms were Acinetobacter which accounted for 47% of the organisms followed by Non fermenting gram negative bacilli which had accounted for 25% of the organisms.

The study was done using the modified Centre for disease control National health survey network criteria and had shown an incidence of ventilator associated event when compared to previous data reporting ventilator associated pneumonia which was based on different subjective criteria. The incidence of Ventilator associated event was 41 per 1000 device days when compared to study done in another centre in India which had an incidence of 30.6 per 1000 device days. This might demonstrate a higher pick up rate of ventilator associated events by using the revised criteria. Further studies comparing both the criteria to validate this observation are required.

This study has shown a difference in the common organisms and incidence of ventilator associated pneumonia among the intensive care units in different countries. The intervention in developed countries that are being actively studied in various trials that have brought down the incidence of Ventilator associated pneumonia have been use of closed suction<sup>xliv</sup>, following precautions like hand washing and also alcohol rubs between patients, strict isolation of patients with multidrug resistant organisms. These techniques need validation in our setup on a trial basis along with continuous surveillance to study the efficacy and the feasibility to follow them in the setup.

The incidence of Central line associated blood stream infection was found to be 6.6 per 1000 device days in this study The incidence in the US by the CDC NHSN criteria was found to be 1.1 per 1000 device days.<sup>xlv</sup> The incidence in another centre within the country was found to be 6.8 per 1000 device days.<sup>xlvi</sup>The common organism was Non fermenting gram negative bacillus which accounted for 44% of the cases followed by Klebsiella which had accounted for 22% of organisms This is different from setup in Western countries where the commonest organism is Staphylococcus aureus.

There is difference in the incidence of central line associated blood stream infection between the different intensive care units. The various intervention techniques that have been used are use of antibiotic coated central lines, daily central line dressing by trained staff, sterile manner of usage of central line akin to blood culture procedure and central line lumen caps which need less handling. These measures need further validation in our setup.

The incidence of Catheter associated urinary tract infection in this study was found to be 2.87 per 1000 device days. The incidence in the United States was found to be 0.7 per 1000 device days. The patients in the intensive care unit had their urinary catheter removed at the earliest which has brought down the incidence of Catheter associated urinary tract infection. The mortality associated with Catheter associated urinary tract infection was also less in view of the low incidence.

This study emphasizes the need for continuous surveillance of device associated hospital acquired infections and the need for concerted techniques to tackle the same.

### LIMITATIONS

The study was powered as a surveillance tool for device associated infections so it might just be a snapshot of the four months of the study and to understand device associated hospital acquired infections and then to institute interventions and also to monitor the effectiveness of the same a system of continuous surveillance is to be done.

The study was not powered to look at the mortality associated with device associated hospital acquired infections so conclusions based on the mortality data could not be made.

The study was also limited to medical intensive care and medical high dependency unit so the conclusions made will be limited to the same.



### CONCLUSION

The conclusions of the study were

- 1. The incidence of Ventilator associated event was 41 per 1000 device days
- 2. The most common organism causing Ventilator associated pneumonia was Acenitobacter which made up 47% of the organisms.
- The incidence of Central line associated blood stream infection was 6.6 per 1000 device days
- 4. The most common organism causing Central line associated blood stream infection was Non fermenting gram negative bacilli which accounted for 44% of the organisms
- The incidence of Catheter associated urinary tract infections was 2.87 per 1000 device days
- 6. The most common organism causing Catheter associated urinary tract infection was Enterococcus
- 7. The mortality associated with ventilator associated event was 64% which was statistically significant

### RECOMMENDATION

The study had shown significant increase in mortality in the group with ventilator associated event. As mentioned in Page 29 in Box 3 this study is the first step in a 4 step process. The study has been an initiation of surveillance. The next steps would involve discussion of the result with the treating team and formulating prevention techniques and then analyzing its results. On the basis of the results of my study I would recommend initiation of interventions to be made to see if decreased handling of the devices and handling in even more sterile manner would alter the incidence rates like usage of closed suction in endotracheal tubes, sterile handling of central lines, earlier removal of central lines and also staff education regarding the same. The need for continuous surveillance along the interventions would tell us the efficacy and feasibility of the above mentioned interventional techniques and the shortfalls of the same.



### **BIBLIOGRAPHY**

<sup>1</sup> "India Hospital Acquired Infection." International Journal of Medicine and Medical Sciences (ISSN: 2315-9844) Vol. 1(7) pp. 91-94, July, 2014

<sup>1</sup> Gadani, Vyas, and Kar, "A Study of Ventilator-Associated Pneumonia."

<sup>1</sup> Internet. http://www.cdc.gov/nhsn/datastat/index.html

<sup>1</sup> "Critical Care | Full Text | Ventilator-Associated Pneumonia in the ICU."

<sup>1</sup> Datta et al., "Health-Care-Associated Infections," 2014.

<sup>1</sup> "NHSN VAE Protocol - April 2015 - 10-VAE\_FINAL.pdf."

<sup>1</sup> "http://www.who.int/csr/resources/publications/whocdscsreph200212.pdf."

<sup>1</sup> "NHSN VAE Protocol - April 2015 - 10-VAE\_FINAL.pdf."

<sup>1</sup> "http://www.who.int/csr/resources/publications/whocdscsreph200212.pdf."

<sup>1</sup> Ibid.

<sup>1</sup> Struelens, "The Epidemiology of Antimicrobial Resistance in Hospital Acquired Infections."

<sup>1</sup> "Cost of HAI."

<sup>1</sup> Graves, "Economics and Preventing Hospital-Acquired Infection."

<sup>1</sup> "http://www.who.int/csr/resources/publications/whocdscsreph200212.pdf."

<sup>1</sup> "NHSN VAE Protocol - April 2015 - 10-VAE\_FINAL.pdf."

<sup>1</sup> "6 Ventilator-Associated Pneumonia (VAP) Events - 6pscvapcurrent.pdf."

<sup>1</sup> Joseph et al., "Ventilator-Associated Pneumonia in a Tertiary Care Hospital in India."

<sup>1</sup> Ranjan et al., "Ventilator-Associated Pneumonia in a Tertiary Care Intensive Care Unit."

<sup>1</sup> Gadani, Vyas, and Kar, "A Study of Ventilator-Associated Pneumonia."

<sup>1</sup> Ismail, Darbyshire, and Thorburn, "Ventilator-Associated Pneumonia (VAP)."

<sup>1</sup> Vanhems et al., "Early-Onset Ventilator-Associated Pneumonia Incidence in Intensive Care Units."

<sup>1</sup> "Pugin J, Auckenthaler R, Mili N, Janssens JP, Lew PD, Suter PM. Diagnosis of Ventilator-Associated Pneumonia by Bacteriologic Analysis of Bronchoscopic and Nonbronchoscopic 'blind' Bronchoalveolar Lavage Fluid. Am Rev Respir Dis. 1991 May;143(5 Pt 1):1121–9."

<sup>1</sup> "Tejerina E, Esteban A, Fernández-Segoviano P, Frutos-Vivar F, Aramburu J, Ballesteros D, et Al. Accuracy of Clinical Definitions of Ventilator-Associated Pneumonia: Comparison with Autopsy Findings. J Crit Care. 2010 Mar;25(1):62–8."

<sup>1</sup> "NHSN VAE Protocol - April 2015 - 10-VAE\_FINAL.pdf."

<sup>1</sup> Mall, "Role of Cilia, Mucus, and Airway Surface Liquid in Mucociliary Dysfunction."

<sup>1</sup> "Tracheostomy Care Guidelines -

June\_nepean\_tracheostomy\_care\_guidelines.pdf."

<sup>1</sup> Gadani, Vyas, and Kar, "A Study of Ventilator-Associated Pneumonia."

<sup>1</sup> "NHSN VAE Protocol - April 2015 - 10-VAE\_FINAL.pdf."

<sup>1</sup> "doi:10.1510/icvts.2004.100149 - 110.full.pdf."

<sup>1</sup> "REducing Bloodstream Infections in an Outpatient Hemodialysis Center—new Jersey, 2008-2011."

<sup>1</sup> Ibid.

<sup>1</sup> Singhi and Nallaswamy, "Catheter Related Blood Stream Infection in Indian PICUs."

<sup>1</sup> Deepti et al., "Central Venous Catheter Related Bloodstream Infections in Medical Intensive Care Unit Patients in a Tertiary Referral Centre."

<sup>1</sup> Shah et al., "Intravascular Catheter-Related Bloodstream Infection."

<sup>1</sup> Graves, "Economics and Preventing Hospital-Acquired Infection."

<sup>1</sup> "17pscnosinfdef\_current.pdf."

<sup>1</sup> Shah et al., "Intravascular Catheter-Related Bloodstream Infection."

<sup>1</sup> "7 Catheter-Associated Urinary Tract Infection (CAUTI) 7pscCAUTIcurrent.pdf."

<sup>1</sup> Ibid.

<sup>1</sup> "NHSN Reports | NHSN | CDC."

<sup>1</sup> Datta et al., "Health-Care-Associated Infections," January 2014.

<sup>1</sup> Deepti et al., "Central Venous Catheter Related Bloodstream Infections in Medical Intensive Care Unit Patients in a Tertiary Referral Centre."

<sup>1</sup> "Critical Care | Full Text | Ventilator-Associated Pneumonia in the ICU."

<sup>1</sup> Jongerden et al., "Open and Closed Endotracheal Suction Systems in Mechanically Ventilated Intensive Care Patients."

<sup>1</sup> Dudeck et al., "National Healthcare Safety Network Report, Data Summary for 2013, Device-Associated Module."

<sup>1</sup> Datta et al., "Health-Care-Associated Infections," January 2014.

#### **INFORMATION SHEET**

Surveillance of Device Associated Hospital Acquired Infections in Patients admitted in Medical Intensive Care Unit (MICU) and Medical High Dependency Unit (MHDU) in a Tertiary Care centre

### What is Device Associated Hospital Acquired Infection?

Device associated Hospital acquired infections can develop in Intensive care unit due to the invasive devices like urinary catheter, central line or Ventilators. These devices can bypass the natural immunity of the body and at times predispose the body to associated lung, urine or blood infections.

This study looks at the chance of development of new infections and also the most common organisms and what medicines they respond well to. This will guide in future planning of treatment of patients and also to plan new ways to prevent these infections.

### If you take part in the study what will you have to do?

If you take part in the study you will agree to allow the researcher to look at your records to assess if you have developed any infection and also to allow him to

follow up the type of infection and what medicines it responds well to. The information collected will be used for later analysis. You will not receive any financial compensation as part of the study. The study will not affect your treatment in any way.

#### Can you withdraw from this study after it starts?

Your participation in this study is entirely voluntary and you are also free to decide to withdraw permission to participate in this study. If you do so, this will not affect your usual treatment at this hospital in any way.

#### Will your personal details be kept confidential?

The results of this study will be published in a medical journal but you will not be identified by name in any publication or presentation of results. However, your medical notes may be reviewed by people associated with the study, without your additional permission, should you decide to participate in this study.

### **CONSENT FORM**

**Study Title:** Surveillance of Infections that patients acquire from devices used on them hospital in Medical Intensive Care Unit and High Dependency in a tertiary care centre during a period of 1 year.

#### **Study Number:**

Participant's name:

Ι

**Date of Birth / Age (in years):** 

\_\_\_\_\_, son/daughter of \_\_\_\_\_\_

(Please tick boxes)

Declare that I have read the information sheet provide to me regarding this study and have clarified any doubts that I had. []

I also understand that my participation in this study is entirely voluntary and that I am free to withdraw permission to continue to participate at any time without affecting my usual treatment or my legal rights []

I also understand that I do not need to pay for the study []

I understand that I will not receive any free treatment and other financial compensation during the course of the study []

I understand that the study staff and institutional ethics committee members will not need my permission to look at my health records even if I withdraw from the trial. I agree to this access []

I understand that my identity will not be revealed in any information released to third parties or published []

I voluntarily agree to take part in this study []

Name:

Signature:

Date:

Name of witness:

Relation to participant:

Date:

Name of Doctor:

Signature

## CLINICAL RESEARCH FORM

Study Number

Name

Age

Sex

Hospital Number

Date of ICU Admission

Date of Discharge from ICU

Diagnosis at Admission

Co morbid Illness

1. Diabetes Mellitus 2. Hypertension 3. Dyslipedemia 4. COPD 5. Bronchial Asthma 6. Renal Failure 7. Chronic Liver Disease 8.Rheumatic Heart Disease 9. Hypothyroidism 10. Autonomic Dysfunction 11. Illicit Drug Use 12. Ischemic Heart disease 13. Hyperthyroidism 14. HIV infection 15. Anticholinergic drug use 16. Obesity 17. Other Chronic Lung disease 18. Chronic heart failure 19. Anemia 20. Phaechromocytoma 21. Alcohol 22.Others

Date of Intubation

Date of Urinary Catheter Insertion

Date Central line insertion

Type of Central line – Jugular / Femoral/ Subclavian

Central line site Infection -



Ventilator Associated Condition

Infective Ventilator Associated Complication

Possible Ventilator Associated Pneumonia

Probable Ventilator Associated Pneumonia
Organism 1 –

Sensitivity -

Organism 2 –

Sensitivity –

Central Line associated Blood Stream infection

Blood culture growth of recognized pathogen not related to any other site

Clinical signs

1.Fever

2.Chills

3.Hypotension

Blood Culture growth of commensal in two separate cultures on separate

occasion

Type of CLABSI – LCBI 1 / LCBI 2

Organism 1 –

Sensitivity –

Organism 2 –

Sensitivity -

Catheter Associated Urinary Tract Infection

Criteria 1 – Any one

1. Fever (>38°C)

2. Suprapubic tenderness

3. Costovertebral angle pain or tenderness

Criteria 2 – At least 1 of the following

1. Positive dipstick for leukocyte esterase and/or nitrite

2.pyuria (urine specimen with  $\geq 10$  white blood cells [WBC]/mm3 of unspun urine or >5 WBC/high power field of spun urine)

3. Microorganisms seen on Gram's stain of unspun urine

Urine culture –

1.Colony count >  $10^{5}$ 

2.Colony count 10<sup>^</sup>3 to 10<sup>^</sup>5

Organism 1 –

Sensitivity -

Organism 2 –

Type of CAUTI – Asymptomatic/ Symptomatic Criteria 1a / Symptomatic

Criteria 2a

## CONDENSED DATA SHEET

| x M      | icroso    | ft Excel - d   | atalxis (C | ompat                      | tibility N                     | /ode]                     |                      |                |                       |                       |   |  |  |                  |            |            |       |        |              |        |                     |              |            |        |         |                   |  | - 0            | 1 X          |
|----------|-----------|--|------------|----------------------------|--------------------------------|---------------------------|----------------------|----------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|---|--|--|------------------|------------|------------|-------|--------|--------------|--------|---------------------|--------------|------------|--------|---------|-------------------|--|----------------|--------------|
|          | ٨         | ) (  | 0 0        | 1                          | 3                              | 1                         | 1                    | J D            | L H                   |                       | n                                       | 6  | 1  | 2 T              | J          | ١          | ٧     |        |              | 2 44   | AC AG               | AD.          | 10 N       | AC     | All     | AL AL             | 40   | AL AH          | - ANI        |
| 1 14     | u 14<br>4 | n mar a<br>Nanida  | N/ 100     | A factor                   | ioned<br>No. 1040-540          | itus<br>aeeee 30          |                      | nur vegat<br>á | virona? Jinger:<br>20 | ) skynad diagr<br>) û | 400,100 B                               | nay aris<br>• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •  | jeka straz<br>6 pp. apr. 2015                      | ali of paper int | a Gir<br>S | 1.4        | Pr 11 | han yf | ամնե բա<br>4 | a jana | variger -spile<br>S | d vargen' va | long , ros | 4      | kype.cm | baaded eaki.<br>D | ge skouiterster<br>C   | - en 1 starger | nikym v<br>A |
| 5        | ÷.        | 11 males   | 59         | 194455                     | 0. 1400-00                     |                           | (155                 | 1 1            | 5 1                   | 2 0                   |   | 10102/201  | 01.01.203  | ,                | 2          |            | 2     | i i    | 2            | 1      |                     |              |            | ÷.     | 2       | 2                 | è l  |                | i            |
| 4        | )         | : viqualit   | 26         | 192503                     | 0.060                          |                           | 1403                 | 1 20           | ĸ                     | ) (                   |   | 1/10201  | (25/15/2014  | 2                | 2          | : 1        | 1     | 1      | 1            | 1      | 4 4                 | 6 D          |            | 1      | 2 1     | +                 | 1 1  | 1              | • 1          |
| 5        | 1         | Catrina  | 59         | 1 022/57                   | 7, 01,01,20                    |                           | 2000                 | 2 20           | >                     | ) (                   | • •••••                                 | •••••  | 01.01.2015   | 1                | 2          | : 1        | 2     | 2      | 2            | ŝ      |                     |              |            | 2      | 2 2     | 1                 | 9  |                | 2            |
| 6        | 2         | E guara<br>Kanalar   | 20         | 1 99750                    | 5° 04,04,20<br>Ni 01,04,20     |                           | 50406                | 2 22           | 2                     |                       |   | (4***2(1)<br>(7)***2(1)                            | 01.01.2001   | )                | 1          |            |       | 2      | 2            | 3      |                     |              |            | 2      |         | 1                 | 5  |                | 2            |
| 0        | ž         | K and K  | ù          | 2 20000                    | 71 10.0620                     |                           | 22103                | 1 1            |                       | j j                   |   | New York   | 1.01.2015  |                  | 2          |            |       | 1      | 1            | 1      |                     |              |            | 1      |         | 1                 | 2  |                | 1            |
| 5        | ò         | 21 mails   | я          | 1 97110                    | 14.01.20                       |                           | 259-102              | ਾ ਸ            | 6                     | , i                   |   | 200  | 0.062015   | -                | 2          | : :        | 2     | i      | 1            | 1      |                     |              |            | i.     | a i     | i.                | è i  |                | i            |
| к        | 2         | X militas  | 70         | 1 021100                   | 0 16,05,20                     |                           | 7024                 | 1 4            | ĸ                     | 2 6                   |   | 4420   | 16,06,2015   | 1                | 2          | : 1        | 1     | 1      | 2            | 4      | 2 1                 | ) 0          | (          | 1      | 2 1     | +                 | <  |                | 1            |
| Н        | 10        | Rakev  | 4          | 1.931.900                  | 24 24,04,24                    | 111111                    | 5792+1               | 2 1            | 6 3                   | 3 0                   | • ++++++                                | 29-9206  | 21.01.2015   | 1                | 2          | 1          | 1     | 1      | 2            | 1      | 2 1                 | 2 0          | 6          | 1      | 2 1     | 1                 | (  |                | 1            |
| 12       | 1         | Constra<br>Constra   | 10         | 1 912560                   | 2: 21,01,20                    | 016 <b>111111</b>         | 1111/1               | 1 1            |                       | 2 4                   | 22 111111                               | 2949205  | 22,01,2015   | 2                | 2          | 1          |       |        | 2            | -      | 1                   | 2 0          | (          | 1      | 2 1     | 1                 | <u> </u>   | _              | 1            |
| h k      | 0         | The section of the se | 10         | 2 912911                   | 11 20170-201<br>22 23-04-20    | //6 111111<br>//C 444444  | 1000                 | 1 21           | 4                     | , <i>m</i>            |   | 27040200   | 20001200   |                  | 2          |            |       | - 1    | 2            | -      |                     | 2 0          |            | -      |         | 1                 | -  | _              |              |
| II I     | - 11      | Sec. der.  |            | 191226                     | 29,04,20                       | 16 111111                 | 172262               | 2 29           |                       | ) 0                   |   | •9•9200  | 01.01.20)  | ,                | 2          | ; ;        | 2     |        | 2            | 1      | 2 0                 |              | ,          | 2      | 2 3     | 1                 | ċ  | _              | 2            |
| К        | \$        | Vickes   | 35         | 2 912626                   | 0: 22,01,20                    | 111111                    | 222-6                | 3 22           | 4                     | ) (                   | • +++++                                 | 3949208  | 22,06,2015   | 1                | 2          | 3 2        | 2     | 1      | 2            | 1      | 2 0                 |              |            | 1      | 2 2     | 1                 | (  |                | 1            |
| 15       | *         | Y navaga   | 62         | 1 915553                   | 1 29,01,20                     | 16 111111                 | HGH                  | 2 1            | 8 3                   | 50                    | • +++++                                 | 20440208   | 27,01,2015   | 2                | 2          | 3 8        | 2     | 1      | 2            | 1      | 2 0                 |              |            | 1      | 2 2     | 1                 | (  |                | 1            |
| K        | 17        | N zariška  | **         | 2 27-50                    | 2. 21.01.20                    | 111111                    | 42656                | 2 29           | 6                     | 1 2                   | ++++++                                  | •9•9200  | 6 01.01.20)  | )                | 2          | 2 2        | 2     | 2      | 2            | 1      | 2 0                 |              |            | 2      | 2 2     | 1                 | (  | _              | 2            |
| 24       | TT<br>40  | "Contributed   | 10         | 191257                     | * 21/91/20<br>7: 14/02-24      | /IL 111111                | \$74<br>Arac         | 1 12           |                       | 1 2                   | 1 111111                                | - 27999205<br>- 640030248                          | <ul> <li>27(9)(2016</li> <li>31403-2016</li> </ul> |                  | 2          | 1 1        | 2     |        | 2            | 4      | 4 4                 |              |            | 4      |         | 2                 | -  | _              | 2            |
| 2        | 20        | 5000   | 11         | 2 916-45                   | <ol> <li>20002-20</li> </ol>   | 111111                    | 07:52                | · "            |                       | 2 0                   | • ++++++                                | 0102006  | 32,02,2015   | 2                | 2          | : 1        |       | - 1    | 2            |        | 1                   | 1 0          | (          | 1      | 2 1     | 1                 | è la   |                | 1            |
| 22       | и         | 10 garan   | 44         | 1071/2                     | 2: 04402-20                    | 16 111111                 | B)*6                 | 2 29           | 3                     | 8 (                   |   | •9•9200  | 01.01.20)  | )                | 2          | 3 2        | 2     | 2      | 2            | 1      | 2 0                 |              |            | 2      | 2 2     | 1                 | 0  | -              | 2            |
| 55       | 22        | 14 dalara  | 39         | 1 915622                   | 2: 3+402-20                    | 16 111111                 | 22:0                 | 2 22           | (                     | ) (                   | • +++++                                 | 0910202018   | 01.01.20)  | )                | 2          | 3 8        | 2     | 2      | 2            | 2      | 2 0                 |              |            | 5      | 2 2     | 1                 | (  |                | 2            |
| 24       | 22        | tt rinari.   | и          | 2 91 (7                    | F: 1102-20                     | 111111                    | e?-52                | 2 10           | ×                     | > •                   | • ++++++                                | •9•92(0  | 01.01.20)  | )                | 2          | 2          | 2     | 2      | 2            | 1      | 2 0                 |              |            | 2      | 2 2     | 1                 | (  |                | 2            |
| 29       | 21        | 117 victurele<br>116 consis  | 10         | 2 724524                   | n 11402-20<br>n 11402-20       | /IL 111111                | -0456                | : 2            | K ·                   | · 7                   | * ******                                | <ul> <li>102006</li> <li>0102046</li> </ul>        | 11/02/2015<br>01/01/2015                           | 2                | 2          |            | 2     | 2      | 2            | 4      | 6 0<br>2 0          | -            | -          | 6<br>2 |         | 1                 | <u>,</u>   |                | 2            |
| 5.       | x         | 16 nivers  | м          | 102:528                    | F. 1989-20                     | 016 111111                | 77241                | 2 77           |                       | 2 4                   | 1. ******                               | 0102006  | 0.02.2015  | ý                | 2          | 2 2        | 2     |        | 2            | 1      | 2 0                 | -            |            | 2      | 2 3     | 1                 | è de la companya de l | _              | 2            |
| 2*       | 27        | 122 zaniya v   | н          | 2 12 11 11 1               | 6 1-02-20                      | 111111                    | 2854                 | 2 8            | (                     | ) 0                   |   | -9-9200  | 01.01.20)  | )                | 2          | 2 2        | 2     | 2      | 2            | 1      | 2 0                 |              |            | 2      | 2 2     | 1                 | è  |                | 2            |
| 54       | 29        | 105 y construit  | 60         | 2 91/262                   | 214,02,20                      | 111111                    | 190-4                | 2 29           | ж                     | ) (                   | • +++++                                 | \$100000   | 16402-2016   | ž                | 2          | 3 8        | 2     | 2      | 2            | 1      | 2 0                 |              |            | 2      | 2 2     | 1                 | (  |                | 2            |
| 24       | 29        | Ci ma ne   | 49         | 1 91:52                    | 1-402.20                       | 111111                    | 7)•18                | 2 22           | (                     | ) (                   | • +++++                                 | #102/06  | 1+402-2015   | 1                | 2          | : 2        | 2     | 2      | 2            | 1      | 2 0                 |              |            | 5      | 2 2     | 1                 | (  |                | 2            |
| 20       | 20        | 127 Abrill june  | 69<br>-7   | 2 91515                    | 2: 1402.20                     | 06 111111                 | 22407                | 2 29           | 8                     | 2 4                   | • | 19102/001  | 14/02/2015   | 1                | 2          |            | 2     | 2      | 2            | -      | 2 0                 | _            | _          | 5      | 2 2     | 1                 | <u>(</u>   | _              | 2            |
| 22       | 22        | 16 minus   | 10         | 2 016245                   | 5 25402.20                     | 016 111111                | F2-70                | 1 1            |                       |                       |   | 29(20)(6   | 25.02.2015   | 2                | 2          | 2 2        | 2     |        | 2            | 1      | 2 0                 | -            |            | 2      | 2 3     | 1                 | è la   | _              | 2            |
| N        | 22        | 10 Messhak   | 34         | 2 91/22                    | 7: 00/07/20                    | 16 111111                 | -963406              | 2 24           | (                     | ) (                   |   | 021(242)(16  | 22,02,2015   | 2                | 2          | 3 2        | 2     | 1      | 2            | 2      | 2 0                 |              |            | 1      | 2 1     | 1                 | 1 1  | 2              | 2 1          |
| 38       | м         | 16   | 32         | I ettip                    | 0: 34403-26                    | 16 111111                 | 111/2                | 2 22           | (                     | ) (                   | • +++++                                 | 644030266  | 24202-2015   | 1                | 2          | 3 8        | 2     | 2      | 2            | 1      | 2 0                 |              |            | 2      | 2 2     | 1                 | C  |                | 2            |
| 8        | *         | 11F venu at  | 79         | 2 441524                   | 0: 1 <b>00</b> 0520            | NC 999999                 | 3.1.5                | 2 8            | ĸ                     | 1 (                   |   | EVEN/O   | ( M.M.20);   | 1                | ?          | ; ;        | 2     | 2      | ,            | 1      | 2 1                 |              | _          | >      | 2 2     | 1                 |  | _              | ,            |
| 5°       | 22        | the salespan   | 10         | 1 43 74                    | <ul> <li>6. 1000020</li> </ul> | IIC 444444                | - 702/12<br>- 702/12 | 1 1            |                       |                       |   | (\$100000  | C 10.00.2010                                       | >                | ·          | -          |       |        | 4            |        | 2 2                 | 1 0          |            | 4      |         | 1                 | -  | _              |              |
| 24       | 8         | Probane  | 7.8        | 2 441525                   | E TWEET                        |                           | 4907                 | 1 6            | 5                     | P 1                   | 2 111111                                | 0203209  | 6.66.201   | 1                | 2          | 2 1        | ,     |        | 2            | 1      | 2 0                 |              |            | 2      | 2 2     | 1                 | i i  |                | 2            |
| da 🛛     | ж         | 14 westing   | 77         | 14359                      | 6 1688.20                      | IF 233333                 | 11167                |                | (                     | 1 0                   |   | (APONO) P  | 66.66.20)  | 1                | >          | ; ,        | ,     | - 2    | ,            | 1      | × n                 |              |            | >      | 2 2     | 1                 | (  |                | ?            |
| \$       | đì        | tti zanass   | 13         | 101429                     | 6 1008-20                      | NC 22222                  | 207                  | 1 28           | (                     | 1 0                   |   | 0/00/19  | 0.003-2014   | >                | >          | ; ;        | ,     | 2      | >            | 1      | > 0                 |              |            | >      | 2 1     | 1                 | (  |                | ?            |
| 2        | 4         | R' vajida  | **         | 2 93:58                    | 0: 1003-20<br>Al 4003-20       | NF 999999                 | 99455                | 2 0            | (                     | 1 0                   |   | 100000   | 11008-2014<br>1. 4-100-2014                        | 1                | 2          | ; ;        | 7     | - 1    | ,            | 1      | 2                   |              |            | 2      |         | 1                 | -  | _              | 2            |
| 31       | æ         | 12E widers   | 36         | 2 835(2)                   | 8 1000320<br>8 1000320         | REFEEE 31                 | 1707                 | 2 34           | p                     | 1 0                   | 1 111111                                | 1919/10  | 6 1005201*<br>1 0505201*                           | 1                | 2          | ; ;        | 2     |        | 2            | 1      | > 0                 | • •          |            | 2      | 2 2     | 1                 | <u>.</u>   | _              | 2            |
| 15       | 44        | 125 victor   | 77         | 146:17                     | s tunisa                       |                           | 4157                 | > %            | (                     | 1 0                   |   | 1919200  | ; (6.66.20) <sup>.</sup>                           | ····             | ,          | ; ;        |       |        | ;            | ···    | · · ·               |              |            | ;      | , ,     | 1                 | 7  |                | ·····;       |
| źL.      | s         | tof wordfid  | 11         | 145:18                     | e tunga                        | NC 22222                  | 47446                | l di           | (                     | 1 0                   | 1 111111                                | \$10000  | 16003-2014   | 1                | >          | ; ,        | ,     | 1      | ,            | 1      | × 0                 |              |            | 1      | 2 1     | 1                 | (  |                | 1            |
| r        | á.        | 10 salund  | 77         | 141:53                     | C 15AR621                      | NK 22222                  | 786                  | 2 0            | (                     | 1 0                   |   | \$10074  | 5 W.W.201  | 1                | ?          | ; ;        | 2     |        | ,            | -      | > 0                 |              |            | >      | 2 2     | 1                 | (  | _              | ,            |
| 2:       | 47<br>48  | 10 su ari<br>20 diana  | 15<br>17   | 7 2300 <i>0</i><br>1 65029 | e tangazi<br>Ci kangazi        | IIK 999944                | 397%<br>4376         | 7 8            | 3                     | n n<br>P ú            |   | 20(20/0  | 5 5005'2010<br>1 00:002'2010                       |                  | ;          | ; ;        | ,     | 1      | 7            | 1      | 2 0                 |              |            | 4      |         | 1                 |  | _              | - 1          |
| -        | áñ.       | 26 mmarks  | :1         | 14463                      | 2 2403.20                      | 11 BEREER 31              | 7156                 | 1 2            | r<br>t                | ι <u>α</u>            | 1 111111                                | 289730274  | 2:08:201   |                  | 2          | 2 1        | ,     | - 2    | ,            | 1      | > 0                 |              |            | >      | 2 2     | 1                 |  |                | 2            |
| 81       | 9)        | 2B njeyk   | 7          | 14465                      | n nanan                        | IF SEEEE 31               | 691.74               | ) 0            | (                     | 1 0                   |   | Devolution   | PANK 2014  | >                | >          | ; ,        | ,     | - 1    | >            | 2      | × 0                 |              |            | 5      | 2 2     | 1                 | (  |                | >            |
| 0        | н         | 224 sekireleas   | 17         | 111465                     | A LOWPER                       | 11 233333                 | 2.15                 | 1 d            |                       | > û                   |   | 01/40/19   | 10404-2014   | >                | ?          | ; ;        | 2     | - 1    | ?            | 1      | > 0                 |              |            | \$     | 2 2     | 1                 | (  |                | ?            |
| 0        | Ø<br>D    | 25 united  | 16<br>14   | 2.95006                    | 6 19052)<br>C 1907 2           | 11 <b>511111</b>          | MR39                 | 1              | 6                     | 1 0                   |   | <ul> <li>(9)(40)(9)</li> <li>(9)(40)(9)</li> </ul> | c) 1740362004<br>01.00.2020                        | >                | ,          | , ,        | 2     | - 1    | ,            | 2      | 2 0                 |              | _          | 1      | ļ       |                   |  | _              | ,            |
| 16       | 44<br>54  | <ul> <li>D tratage</li> <li>D tratage</li> </ul>   | 40<br>60   | - / G1963<br>  93354       | a 1906/20<br>70 1940/5/20      | IIC 999999<br>IIC 9999999 | 73313                | 7 %<br>} 4     |                       | 1 0                   | 1 111111                                | 1010210  | 5 19992-2016<br>1 19992-2016                       |                  | ;<br>;     | ; ;        | 7     |        | <i>,</i>     | 3      | > 0                 |              |            | 1      | 2       | 1                 |  |                | + +          |
| 41       | 5         | NF departe   | 4          | 195201                     | NAME OF                        |                           | 9613                 | 10             | (                     | 1 0                   |   | 1010071  | 14015-2015   | 5                | >          | ; ;        | ,     |        | ,            | 1      | > 0                 |              |            | 5      | 2 2     | 1                 | 1  |                | 2            |
| 5        | 4         | PC verses  | ч          | 2.0269                     | e tansa                        | NC 393333                 | <b>\$</b> 8:0        | ) X            | •                     | × 0                   |   | 1919200  | 06.06.20)  | ١                | >          | ; ,        | ,     | - 1    | ,            | 2      | > 0                 |              |            | >      | 2 2     | 1                 | (  |                | >            |
| 10       | 57        | NJ velaa   | 19         | 2 49212                    | s source                       | NF 999999                 | 751.14               | 2 1            | 6                     | 1 0                   |   | 2014011  | 2009/2016  | >                | ,          | ; ;        | 2     | 1      | ,            | 1      | 2 0                 |              |            | >      | 2 2     | 1                 | (  |                | >            |
| 94<br>14 | RR<br>Da  | 21 10.000  | 11         | 2 2015                     | 24 23405626<br>5. 34464.54     | II 999999                 | 53350                | 2 1            | × 7                   | 10 N                  |   | 20(40)(4)  | 6 210062018<br>6 26064308                          | 1                | 7          | , ,        | ,     | - 1    | ,            | 2      | 2 0                 | -            | _          | 2      | 2 2     | 1                 |  | _              | ,            |
| 10       |           | 2 Divide   | -4         | 1937/9                     | 6 0.0020<br>6 0.0020           |                           | 198330               | 1 7            | 22                    | 1 0                   | 1 111111                                | 39/2021  | 3149-2016  | >                | 2          | 1          | - 1   | - 1    | 1            | 1      | 1 2                 | 1 1          | (          | 1      | 2 1     | 1                 |  |                | 1            |
| 54       | - 11      | at selation  | 43         | 107,83                     | A VOVID                        | /: 11111                  | 18:44                | 1 13           | 14                    | j v                   |   | UMANUS   | vonaue   | 4                | 4          | ۰<br>۱     |       | i      | 1            | 1      | 1 4                 | 1 1          | i.         | 1      | 2       | 1                 | 1  |                | 1            |
| 52       | ĸ         | 20 yers well   | 14         | 2.09100                    | N USIVILA                      | /I: <b>44444</b> 4        | :0004                | 1 1            | 1 4                   | 5 6                   |   | IN NO.   | USIONZOIE  | 4                | ۷          | 4 4        | 4     | i      | 1            | 4      | 4 U                 |              |            | 1      | 4 i     | 1                 | L  |                | 1            |
| м        | ы         | S' nede  | 50         | 2 95963                    | e 1996a                        | //: 444444                | 969                  | 1 4            | k                     | 1 0                   | 10220                                   | - INVINUE  | nonizote   | 4                | ۷          | 4 1        | 4     | - 4    | 4            | é      | 4 U                 |              |            | 1      | 4 1     | 1                 | L  |                | 1            |
| 33       | 14        | 22 distant   |            | 193106                     | s tavid                        | //: <b>44444</b> 4        | 1040                 | 1 4            | L.                    | 1 1                   | 1 111111                                | 2010/01  | <ul> <li>100ha0h</li> </ul>                        |                  | 4          | ( 1        | 1     | 1      | 1            | 1      | 1 1                 | 1            | 4          | 1      | 4       | 1                 | 1  | _              | 1            |
| 24       | 60<br>88  | C more   | 4          | 1939/4                     | 7 19190000<br>9 15100-0        | //: 444444<br>//: 111111  | 305110               | 1 1/2          | 2                     | , v                   |   | - 1909/03<br>1909/03                               | 1000000  | 1                | 4          | ( 1<br>/ 1 |       |        | 1            | 2      | 1 4<br>2 U          | / 1          | 1          | 1      | 2       | 1                 | t l  |                | 1            |
| 52       | M         | 44 seraces   | 3          | 2 959319                   | 9 150Ma                        | 11: 11111                 | 13914                | 1 4            | 1                     | j i                   |   | 2000   | 15052012   | 1                | 2          |            | - 2   | i      | 2            | 4      | i i                 |              |            | ŝ      | 2 1     | 1                 | i  |                | 4            |
| H 4      | k ki      | data 🥖   | n/         |                            |                                |                           |                      |                |                       |                       |   |  |  |                  |            |            |       | 1      |              |        |                     | 1            |            |        |         |                   |  |                |              |

## CONDENSED DATA SHEET

| Microsoft Exce                   | - data1.             | xlsx                   |  |     |          |              |        |     |                                    |            |        |     |    |              |        |            |          |      |     |     |      |             |               |       |    |        |      |      |       |          |       |      | ľ |
|----------------------------------|----------------------|------------------------|--|-----|----------|--------------|--------|-----|------------------------------------|------------|--------|-----|----|--------------|--------|------------|----------|------|-----|-----|------|-------------|---------------|-------|----|--------|------|------|-------|----------|-------|------|---|
| 0 C 0                            | L I                  | C                      | - I - I                                    | J   | I        | ι            | н      | N I | D D U R                            | 1          | Ĩ      | 1 1 | ¥. | X I          | 1 2    | 綿          | AD AC    | ÂÛ   | я́. | H 8 | C AN | Ĥ           | Ń             | AK AL | ян | 88     | 60 6 | IP I | AG AR | Ŕ        | AT AL | J AV |   |
| til nirica - 13<br>av 1 a        | t Hanf               | \$4285                 | 8/8/8/12                                   | 1   | 6        |              | -      |     | I STRANS SARARS WRAN               | 1 1        | 1      | 1 1 |    | 1            | 1      | <u>8 1</u> | -        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 1           |               |       |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 4     | 1        | 1     |      |   |
| 101 abola v 10<br>101 autor - 21 | 0000                 | ND/202                 | NUDAND<br>XUDANO                           | 1   | 1        | и<br>л       | n<br>1 | +   | I MORTO INTERNO INTERNO            | 1 I<br>1 J | ,      | , , | 1  | +            | 1      |            | +        |      | _   | ;   | ;    |             | ÷             |       |    | 1      | ,    | +    | ;     |          |       | +    | + |
| Hirdhaa II                       | ( 9989               | 8/1/86                 | 8/8/8/2                                    | 1   | 8        | Ť            | ÷      | ÷   | 1 202/2015 202/2015 202/2015       | d i        | 1      | 1 1 | i  | ÷            | 1      | 1 1        | ÷        |      |     | ì   | ì    |             | ÷             |       |    | 1      | 1    | ì    | ì     |          | T.    | -    | t |
| 16 réhua - 8                     | 1 8086               | 84286                  | 2/12/202                                   | 1   | 8        |              | 1      | 1   | 1 8/8/86 8/8/86 8/8/86             | 1 1        | 1      | 1   | 1  | 1            | 1      | ŧ 1        | 1        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 1           | 1             |       |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | i i      |       |      |   |
| 191 iulida — 91                  | 1 1924               | 5/1/85                 | 8/18/812                                   | 1   | 11       | - 1          | - 1    | 1   | I BYRANS BYRANS BYRAN              | 1 1        | 1      | 1 1 | 1  | 1            | 1      | 1 1        | 1        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 1           | 1             |       |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | i i      | 1     |      | T |
| 155 nijagade – 11                | 2 1551516            | 8488                   | สกลายร่                                    | 1   | 8        |              | 4      | 1   | тикан какак киа                    | 1 1        | 1      | 1 1 | 1  | 1            | 1      | 11         | 1        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 1 1         | 1             | _     |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | 1 1      | 1     | _    | + |
| Sinanaha R<br>Mili M             | 1 100102             | 8/12/86                | 19/19/2019                                 | 1   | 8        | $\square$    | ÷      | +   | TIORAIN KAVAK IOBAN                | 5 5        |        | 2 1 |    | +            | 1      | 2 2        | ÷        | -    | _   | +   | +    | 2 6         | ÷             | _     |    |        | 1    | ÷    | +     |          |       | +-   | + |
| 19 php - 6<br>49 stant - 19      | 2 20205              | 3/1/2/35               | EAD/2012                                   | ,   |          | $\vdash$     | ÷      | -   | I KOKAIN ALDAR ADDAR               |            | ,      | , , |    | -            | ,      |            | +        |      |     | ,   | ,    | 4 1<br>, 1  | ÷             | _     |    | ,      | ,    | ,    | ,     |          |       | -    | + |
| 151 antilia 11                   | 2 90786              | MIYIIS                 | RADADO                                     | i   | 1        |              | ÷      | ÷   | I MORES HORES HORE                 | 5 2        | i      | 2   |    | i            | i      | 1          | ÷        |      |     | i   | i    | 2 1         | ÷             |       |    | i      | i    | ż    | i     | 1 1      | t i   | -    | + |
| (B. 100) B                       | 2 901996             | 0.0936                 | 0/8/00                                     | 1   | a        | Ē            | ì      | i   | I IOMAIN BABARG BABAN              | 3 1        | 1      | 1 1 | 1  | 1            | 1      | i i        | -i-      |      |     | ì   | 1    | 2 4         | - È           |       |    | 1      | 1    | 2    | 1     | 1 1      | ī.    |      |   |
| 68 Hinto - 90                    | ( 90836              | 1/19/206               | 20/18/2019                                 | 1   | 8        | R            | 1      | 1   | 1 078786 078786 19978              | ( I        | 1      | 1   | (  | - (          | 1      | ( (        | (        | ( (  | 1   | (   | 1    | 1 (         | 1             |       |    | - 1    | 1    | 2    | 1     | 1 1      | 2     | 1    | ٤ |
| 177 rayad 🛛 🖁                    | 1988                 | 109986                 | 8/8/810                                    | 1   | 5        | 6            | 1      | ŧ.  | TRAVAR REAR                        | ( )        | 1      | 1   | 1  | 1            | 1      | 11         | 1        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 2 4         | 1             |       |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | į I      | 1     |      |   |
| 191 japanal – 19                 | 1 77881              | 9/19/3/5               | 8/6/8/12                                   | 1   | i        | 18           | -      | 1   | 1 1/0/205 11/0/205 2/0/20          | 1          | 1      | 1 1 | 1  | 1            | 1      | <u>8 1</u> | 1        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 1           | -             |       |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | 1        | 1     |      |   |
| 191 Auntal C                     | 2 0706               | anyas                  | 2/15/21/2                                  | 1   | 16       |              | -      | -   | 1 8/07/15 8/07/85 8/07/1           | 5 1        | 1      | 1   |    | 1            | 1      | 11         | 1        | i 1  | - 1 | 1   | -    | 1 1         |               | _     |    | 1      | 1    | -    | -     | 1 1      |       |      | + |
| Wander W                         | 1 4444               | RUUR                   | 3/13/212                                   | ,   |          | <sup>*</sup> | ÷      | ÷   | Tanana anyan, mina<br>Tanung supur |            | ,      | 1 1 | 1  | ÷            | 1      | 11         | +        |      |     | ÷   | ÷.   |             | ÷             | _     |    | ,      | ,    | ÷    | ÷     |          | t i   | -    | ÷ |
| St datair S                      | 1808                 | 8/9/86                 | HARAN                                      | i   | 8        |              | ÷      | ÷   | 1 SABARS SAVARS SABAR              | i          | i      | 1 1 |    | ÷            | 1      | 11         | ÷        |      |     |     | i    |             | ÷             |       |    | 1      | i    | ÷    | i     |          | - i-  |      |   |
| Cil calular SI                   | 2 100116             | 9/19/2/5               | 0/0/202                                    | 1   | 5        | Ē            | ì      | i   | I IYWAIS RAWAIS RAWAI              | 5 2        | i      | 2   | ii | i            | 1      | ìì         | i        | ( )  | Т   | 1   | i    | 1 1         | - i           |       |    | 1      | i    | i    | i     | 1 1      | - i   | -    | T |
| 83 Militar - 30                  | 1 5206               | 1/16/36                | 1/10/2112                                  | 1   | R        |              |        |     | і килан кахан кила                 | 1 1        | ł      | 1 1 | 1  | 1            | 1      | 1 1        | I        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 2 1         |               |       |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | i i      |       |      | Τ |
| 12 shoul St                      | ( \$206              | 93036                  | 22/0/2009                                  | 1   | ((       | 1            | (      | R   | 1 191/201 9/0216 9/0216            | 5 3        | 1      | 2 3 | 1  | 1            | 1      | 2 2        | 1        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 2 6         | 1             |       |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | 1 1      | 1     |      |   |
| 81 innip - 8                     | ( 288                | 44098                  | NAMAHA                                     | 1   | . 1      | 1            | - 1    | 1   | 1 424/245 424/245 124/24           | ( 1        | 1      | 1 1 | 1  | 1            | 1      | 8 8        | 1        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 2 4         | - (           |       |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | 1 1      | 1     |      | _ |
| SI delibite - S                  | 1 \$206              | 8///86                 | 8/11/81/2                                  | 1   | 8        | 1            | -      | 1   | тикан какак киза                   | 1 1        | 1      | 1 1 | 1  | 1            | 1      | 1 1        | -        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 1           |               | _     |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | 1        | 1     |      | + |
| 10 miji 11<br>10 r               | 1 10000              | CONTRACTS<br>2010/01/2 | number                                     | 1   | 1        | H            | ÷      | 3   | I arrivens arrivens arriven        |            | 1      | 1 1 | +  | +            | 1      | 9 9        | +        |      |     | +   | -    | 1           |               | _     |    | 1      | 1    | +    | +     |          |       |      | + |
| Milana U                         | 2 8000               | SHORE                  | 2010/2012                                  | ,   |          | -            | л      | ÷   | тован вачая, вача                  |            | 1      | , , | 1  | ÷            | ,<br>1 |            | ÷        |      | _   | ÷   | ;    | , 1<br>, (  | ÷             |       |    | ,      | ;    | ÷    | ;     |          | t i   | -    | t |
| Since B                          | 1 9296               | NIVAS                  | B2H2H2                                     | i   | 8        |              | 4      | i   | LIVERAR REPART REPART              | i          | i      | 1   |    | i            | i      | 11         | ÷        |      |     | i   | i    |             | ÷             |       |    | i      | i    | ÷    | i     |          | -i-   | -    | t |
| Sjadan 8                         | 2 1311314            | 6///86                 | BAHAHA                                     | 1   | - 6      | Ē            | 1      | 1   | тичкан какан сизи                  | 1          | 1      | 1 1 | 1  | 1            | 1      | i i        | -i-      |      |     | 1   | 1    | 1           | - Ì           |       |    | 1      | 1    | i.   | 1     |          | i i   |      |   |
| finitado il                      | 2 111106             | 64986                  | RAHARD                                     | 1   | 13       | 1            | 1      | 1   | т кунан, кауан кунат               | 1 1        | 1      | 1 1 | 1  | 1            | 1      | i i        | 1        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 2 1         | 1             |       |    | 1      | ı    | 1    | 1     | i i      | 1     |      |   |
| 11 <i>in</i> na - 11             | 2 89956              | 04936                  | 1/11/2119                                  | 1   | 2        |              | - 1    | 1   | т клилис клилис влили              | 5 2        | 1      | 2 1 | (  | - (          | 1      | ( (        | 1        | 1 1  | 1   | - ( | 1    | 2 1         | 1             |       |    | - 1    | 1    | 2    | 1     | i i      | 1     | _    | _ |
| Branak K                         | 1 89857              | DAM86                  | BAHAR                                      | 1   | 8        |              | 4      | -   | ГРИНАНС ВАНЛАНС, ВИНЛАН            | 1 1        | 1      | 2 1 |    | 1            | 1      | 1          | +        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 2 4         | 4             |       |    | 1      | 1    | -    | 1     |          |       |      | + |
| Robia R                          | 1 88996              | 8/1985                 | 12/11/2/12                                 |     | 9        | - 19         | ÷      | +   | TRANSING BAYANS BANAN              |            | -      | 1 1 |    | -            | 1      | 5 1        | +        |      |     | -   | +    |             | $\rightarrow$ |       |    | -      | +    | +    | +     |          |       |      | + |
| Nation 7                         | 1 90296              | 64986                  | 1/11/21/2                                  | 1   | 12       |              |        | ÷   | I RAMANS RAWARS RAMAN              | 5 1        | 1      | 2 1 |    | 1            | 1      | 2 2        | ÷        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 2 1         | ÷             |       |    | 2      | 1    | 1    | 1     | 1 1      | t i   |      |   |
| Bjank B                          | ( 99696              | 9019216                | 2/11/2112                                  | 1   | 2        | ß            | ì      | i.  | телилис елилис елили               | 5 2        | 1      | 1 1 | 1  | 1            | 1      | i i        | ÷.       |      |     | i   | i    | 2 6         | - È           |       |    | 1      | 1    | i    | i     | 1 1      | -i-   | -    | T |
| նանտ ն                           | (986)                | 80028                  | нлнляна                                    | 1   | - 8      | 1            | 1      | 1   | TRABAR BARAR PARA                  | а I        | 1      | 1 1 | 1  | 1            | 1      | 2 2        | 1        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 1 1         | 1             |       |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | 1 1      | 1     |      |   |
| 8 ojadi - 8                      | 1 88%                | алуаз                  | ลงหละ                                      | 1   | - 1      | - 6          | 1      | 1   | i amans anvais binan               | 1 1        | 1      | 1 1 | 1  | 1            | ł      | ē 1        | 1        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 1           | - 1           |       |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | i i      | 1     |      |   |
| Si buqu 🛛 🛛 🕅                    | 2 2022206            | สสพสธ                  | алнанз                                     | ı   | 6        | 1            | - 1    | - 1 | า เราหลาร เรกพลาร สสหสา            | 5 2        | ı      | 1 1 | 1  | 1            | ı      | i i        | 1        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 2 1         | 1             | _     |    | l      | ł    | 1    | 1     | i i      | 1     | _    | _ |
| R min R                          | ( 9022566            | алуас                  | алилия                                     | 1   | 8        | - "          | 4      | -   | т юклік, клолік, юклі              | <u>_ </u>  | 1      | 2 3 | 1  | 1            | 1      | 1 1        | <u>+</u> |      |     | 1   | 1    | 1 (         | +             | _     |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | 1 1      | +     | -    | + |
| Polici II<br>B N                 | 1 20025              | 34935                  | 0.000                                      | 1   | 8        |              |        | 1   | TRANSIS SAVAS AZAVA                |            |        | -   |    | +            | 1      | 11         | +        | 5 1  | - 1 | -   | -    |             |               | _     |    |        | -    | -    | +     |          |       |      | + |
| Norman 11<br>Norman 1            | 6 216752<br>2 M22216 | ลกาสร<br>มหาสร         | arnang<br>wavang                           | 1   | 16       | 1            | -;     |     | Comon orman orman                  |            | ,      | 1 1 |    | +            | ۱<br>, |            | +        |      |     | -   | ;    |             |               |       |    | 1      | 1    | +    | +     |          |       | -    | + |
| Manhala St                       | 2 903976             | R/12/215               | 1/12/2119                                  | i   | 16       | R            | ġ      | ÷   | I MORINS RIRIANS RIRIAN            | 5 2        | i      | 2 1 | i  | ÷            | 1      | d i        | ÷        |      |     | i   | i    | 2 1         | ÷             |       |    | 1      | i    | i    | i     | 1        | i i   | -    | t |
| 111 Iugura - 13                  | ( 9988)              | 1/12/205               | 10/12/11/0                                 | 1   | Q        | - 11         | (      | 1   | I INRANS RADARS INVAL              | ( )        | 1      | 1 1 | 1  | 1            | 1      | 2 2        | i.       |      |     | 1   | 1    | 2 2         | 1             |       |    | 1      | 1    | 2    | 1     | 1 1      | 1     |      |   |
| Hendrin - B                      | ( 969B/              | 0/12/88                | 8/12/2149                                  | 1   | 8        | H            | - 1    | - I | т юнлин юнлан рлали                | 1 1        | 1      | 2 3 | 1  | 1            | 1      | 2 2        | 1        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 2 2         | 1             |       |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | 1 1      | 1     |      |   |
| Harger H                         | 1 8966               | 14286                  | 11/18/8112                                 | 1   | 6        | Ŕ            | - 1    | 1   | TRABIT REAL PART                   | ( )        | 1      | 1 1 |    | 1            | 1      | 1 1        | 1        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 1           | 1             |       |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | 1        | 1     | _    | + |
| 16 inuer 8                       | 2 905916             | BANAG                  | 10/12/2119                                 | 1   | R        |              | -      | -   | I BYRAHS BARAHS WRAH               | 5 1        | 1      | 1 1 |    |              | 1      | 11         | +        |      |     | -   | -    | 1 1         |               |       |    | 1      | 1    | -    | -     | 1        |       |      |   |
| Minute D                         | 1 20202              | DAGAD<br>IUDDIG        | 10000                                      | 1   | -        |              | ÷      | ÷   | T DARADS DARADS DARAD              | 1 1        | 1      | 1 1 |    | 1            | 1      |            | ÷        |      |     | 1   | ,    | ն ն<br>յ յ՝ | ÷             | _     |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | (<br>1 1 | ÷     | -    | + |
| Huden I                          | 2 98966              | BASAR                  | 8/12/21/2                                  | i   | 12       | Ť            | ÷      | ÷   | т юнлан клуан клал                 |            | i      | 1 1 |    | ÷            | 1      | 11         | ÷        |      |     | ì   | ì    |             | ÷             | _     |    | 1      | ì    | ì    | ì     |          | -i-   | -    | + |
| 11 nalimit - B                   | R MSHIF              | 9/8/85                 | 1/18/8112                                  | 1   | a        | 11           | I.     | 1   | т вуван вауав вува                 | 1 1        | 3      | 1   | 1  | 1            | 1      | 8 8        | 1        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 2 2         | 1             |       |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | 1 1      | 1     |      |   |
| 16 លើល 🛛 ដ                       | 2 002110             | 11/12/215              | 10/12/2119                                 | 1   | 1        | a            | li     | 1   | 1 10/12/05 10/12/05 10/12/06       | 5 2        | ı      | 1 1 | 1  | 1            | ı      | i i        | 1        |      |     | ı   | 1    | 1 1         | 1             |       |    | ı      | ł    | 1    | 1     | i ı      | 1     |      |   |
| Manjila B                        | ( 9633)              | 9/12/36                | 9/12/110                                   | 1   | 9        | - 1          | - 1    | -   | 1 6/12/2015 16/12/2016 16/12/2016  | 5 2        | 1      | 2 3 | 1  | 2            | 1      | i i        | 1        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 1 1         | - 1           | _     |    | 1      | 1    | 2    | 2     | i i      | _     | _    | 4 |
| 12 Indexts 2                     | 1 826,               | 9/12/26                | 2012/2149                                  | 1   | 8        |              |        | -   | 1 6/8/815 6/8/816 6/8/816          | 1          | 1      | 1   | 1  | 1            | 1      | 11         |          | ( 1) | 1   | 1   | 1    | 1 1         | 4             | -     |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | 1        | +     | +-   | + |
| 18 bijana – 18<br>Al Kansis – 20 | 2 90116              | 9/1/18<br>0/0/24       | 8/8/8/9<br>22/22/06/9                      | 1   | 1        | $\square$    |        | -   | 1 1/16/215 12/12/215 12/16/21      |            | 1      | 1   |    | 1            | 1      | 1          | +-       |      |     | 1   | ,    | ( )<br>, ,  |               | -     |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     |          | -     | +-   | + |
| 10 contra di                     | 1 200324             | 1000                   | WRANS                                      | ,   | 1        |              | ÷      | -   | I BURGH BURGH BURGH                |            | 1      | 1 1 |    | ;            | 1      | 1          | +        |      |     | 1   | 1    | • • <br>; ; |               |       |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     |          |       | +    | + |
| filedeni fi                      | 2 67166              | 6/12/36                | 2012/2142                                  | 1   | 1        | 12           | ÷      | i   | I IVERALK KAWAR WARA               | 1 1        | 1      | 1 1 | 1  | 1            | 1      | 1 1        | ÷        |      |     | 1   | 2    | 1 1         | ÷             |       |    | 1      | 1    | 2    | 2     |          | -i-   | +    | t |
| Hanada B                         | ( 9986               | NAVAR                  | R/B/RHS                                    | i i | 8        | - 12         | - 1    | 1   | талана алиан алиан                 | 3 1        | 1      | 1 1 | i  | 1            | 1      | i i        | i.       |      |     | 1   | 1    | 1 1         | Ì.            |       |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | 1 1      | Ì     | T    | Ť |
| 12 milia - 1                     | ( SHSF               | 8/1/36                 | 8/8/842                                    | 1   | 8        | H            | 1      | I   | LANDAR MEAN PROPERTY               | 1 1        | 1      | 1 1 | 1  | 1            | 1      | į 1        | 1        |      |     | 1   | 1    | 1 1         | 1             |       |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | 1        | 1     |      |   |
| til mater - 18                   | 1 9626               | RAVAS                  | REPORTED                                   | 1   | 11       | i            | 0      | 1   | I INDRES INDRES INDRES             | 5 2        | 1      | 1   | 1  | 1            | 1      | ų i        | (        | 1 1  | I   | 1   | 1    | 1 8         | 1             |       |    | 1      | ı    | 1    | 1     | i i      | 1     |      |   |
| fil daden - 11                   | 1 90786              | BANA6                  | NARANA NA | 1   | R        | 1            | 4      | 1   | I RADRINS' RADRINS IMMRII          | [ ]        | 1      | 1 1 | 1  | 1            | 1      | ų i        | <u> </u> |      |     | 1   | 1    | 1 1         | 4             | -     |    | 1      | 1    | 1    | 1     | 1 1      | 1     | +    | + |
| 10 mahl B                        | 2 902006             | 1019216                | 1/18/2019                                  | 1   | 1        | 1            |        | +   | 1 15/18/2015 15/19/2015 15/18/201  |            | 1      | 1 1 |    | -            | 1      | 1 1        | +        |      |     | 1   | -    |             | +             | _     |    | 1      | 1    | -    | -     | 1        |       | +    | + |
| 10 cantes - 11<br>18 canaz - A   | 2 90/0F              | anadu<br>Nguae         | 1711/2112<br>1711/2140                     | ;   | 27<br>39 |              |        |     | LINKIR RIVIN DAV                   | <u>.</u>   | ;<br>; |     | ÷  | <del>;</del> | ÷      | 5 5        |          |      |     |     | ÷    | ; ;         |               |       |    | ;<br>; | ;    |      |       | ş;       |       |      |   |
| and approach the                 | 1000                 |                        | annor                                      |     | 1        |              | -      | 1   |                                    | ; ;        |        |     | 1  | - 1          | 1      | 11         | 1        |      |     | 1   |      | : 1         |               | -     |    |        | 1    | +    |       | 1        |       | +-   | + |





